
 

 
 

 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING - 4 DECEMBER 2014 
 

 
Councillors of the London Borough of Islington are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council 
to be held in the Council Chamber at the Town Hall, Upper Street, London N1 Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on at 7.30 pm. 

 

 
Chief Executive 

 

AGENDA 
 

  Page 
 

1.  Minutes 
 

1 - 10 

 The Minutes of the Annual Council meeting held on 12 June 2014.  

2.  Declarations of Interest 
 

 

 If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest* in an item of business: 
 if it is not yet on the council’s register, you must declare both the existence and 

details of it at the start of the meeting or when it becomes apparent; 
 you may choose to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest that is already in 

the register in the interests of openness and transparency.   
In both the above cases, you must leave the room without participating in discussion of 
the item. 
 
If you have a personal interest in an item of business and you intend to speak or vote 
on the item you must declare both the existence and details of it at the start of the 
meeting or when it becomes apparent but you may participate in the discussion and 
vote on the item. 

 

*(a) Employment, etc - Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation  
 carried on for profit or gain. 

(b) Sponsorship - Any payment or other financial benefit in respect of your 
expenses in carrying out duties as a member, or of your election; including  
from a trade union. 

(c)   Contracts - Any current contract for goods, services or works, between you or 
  your partner (or a body in which one of you has a beneficial interest) and the  
  council. 

(d)    Land - Any beneficial interest in land which is within the council’s area. 

(e)  Licences- Any licence to occupy land in the council’s area for a month or  
longer. 

(f)   Corporate tenancies - Any tenancy between the council and a body in which 
  you or your partner have a beneficial interest. 

(g)   Securities - Any beneficial interest in securities of a body which has a place of 

 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

  business or land in the council’s area, if the total nominal value of the  
  securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share capital  
  of that body or of any one class of its issued share capital.   

 
This applies to all members present at the meeting. 

 

3.  Mayoral Announcements 
 

 

 (i) Apologies 
(ii) Order of business 
(iii) Declaration of discussion items by the Majority and Opposition 

parties 
 

 

4.  Leader's Announcements 
 

 

5.  Petitions 
 

 

6.  Revised report of the Chief Whip 
 

11 - 12 

7.  Questions from Members of the Youth Council 
 

 

8.  Questions from Members of the Public 
 

13 - 14 

9.  Questions from Members of the Council 
 

15 - 16 

10.  Council Tax Support Scheme 2015-2016 
 

17 - 52 

11.  Quarterly Monitoring Report 
 

53 - 54 

12.  Notices of Motion 
 

55 - 58 

 Where a motion concerns an executive function, nothing passed can be 
actioned until approved by the Executive or an officer with the relevant 
delegated power. 
 
Motions: 

1. Tackling tax-dodging businesses, locally and globally 
2. Fire cuts make Islington less safe  
3. Motion proposing that Islington joins other Labour councils calling for TfL 

to expand, strengthen and bring forward the introduction of the proposed 
Ultra Low Emission Zone. 

 

 

13.  Revised Notice of Motions 
 

59 - 64 

 

Enquiries to : Philippa Murphy 

Tel : Tel: 020 7527 3184  Email: Philippa.murphy@islington.gov.uk 

E-mail : democracy@islington.gov.uk 

Despatched : Date Not Specified 

 



 

 16 October 2014 

LONDON BOROUGH OF ISLINGTON 
 

COUNCIL MEETING -  16 OCTOBER 2014 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
At the meeting of the Council held at Council Chamber, Town Hall, Upper Street, N1 2UD on  
16 October 2014 at 7.30 pm. 
 
 

Councillors present: 
 

Debono 
Greening 
Andrews 
Burgess 
Chowdhury 
Convery 
Doolan 
Fletcher 
Hamitouche 
Hull 
Ismail 
Kaseki 
Khan 
Klute 
Murray 
 

O'Sullivan 
A Perry 
R Perry 
Poole 
Smith 
Spall 
Watts 
Webbe 
Court 
Diner 
Donovan 
Erdogan 
Gantly 
Gill 
Heather 
 

Jeapes 
Kay 
Ngongo 
Nicholls 
O'Halloran 
Parker 
Picknell 
Poyser 
Russell 
Turan 
Ward 
Ward 
Wayne 
Williamson 
 

 
 

The Mayor (Councillor Theresa Debono) in the Chair 
 

 

1 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the Council meeting on 26 June 2014 be confirmed as a correct record 
and the Mayor be authorised to sign them. 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

3 MAYORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

(i) Apologies for absence 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Comer-Schwartz, Caluori, 
Gallagher and Councillor Shaikh.  Apologies for lateness were received from 
Councillor Diamaid Ward and Councillor Kay. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



London Borough of Islington 

 16 October 2014 

(ii) Order of Business 
The order of business was not changed.  
 

(iii) Declaration of discussion items 
None.  
 

(iv) Mayor’s Announcements 
The Mayor led the Council in a minute’s silence in memory of ex-Councillor and 
Mayor Mary Powell, who died in September. 
 
The Mayor congratulated the borough’s A -Level students, who this year achieved 
a higher pass rate at A*-C than the national average and advised that she was 
proud to meet some of the students during the summer.  The Mayor was also very 
proud to represent the borough at the celebrations to mark the 50th anniversary of 
Malta’s independence.  
 
The Mayor had also represented the borough at the Drumhead Service at the 
Honourable Artillery Company, which marked the departure of the company’s 
soldiers to war.  All the remembrance events this year are very special and the 
Mayor reminded colleagues that the Remembrance Sunday events would be 
taking place on 9 November.  
 
Finally, the Mayor reminded colleagues that October is Black History Month and 
encouraged them to attend the events and thanked colleagues for the 
overwhelming response to the Fish and Chip dinner in aid of the Mayor’s Charity. 
   

(v) Length of speeches 
The Mayor asked colleagues to do their upmost to keep speeches within the 
permitted length. 

 

4 LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
Councillor Watts thanked the Mayor and also congratulated the GCSE students, 60% of 
whom achieved 5 A-C grades including English and Maths.  Councillor Watts advised we will 
find out next week if it is above the national average as well, although we think it will be as it 
is a tremendous result.  We are proving that local authority maintained schools can succeed 
as fast as any other schools, especially when there is a local authority with a strong role. 
 
Councillor Watts advised that with more Tory led government cuts coming down the line, it is 
at least right to let people know and ask their opinion. We designed a purely factual poster to 
make residents aware and the Mayor of London, in a purely political move,  stopped us 
putting them up around the borough, so he urged all Councillors to circulate the posters as 
much as possible. 
 
Councillor Watts thanked Councillors Murray, Khan,  Klute and Perry, the chairs of the 
Planning Committees and Clerkenwell Councillors for the work they have done opposing and 
highlighting what the Mayor has done at Mount Pleasant.  That out of 681 homes only 4 are 
genuinely social housing is utterly disgraceful.  That the Mayor thinks that £2,800 per month 
is affordable only shows how out of touch he is with ordinary Islingtonians. 
 
Finally, Councillor Watts encouraged colleagues to attend at least one Black History Month 
events as it is vital to celebrate the diversity of the borough.  
 
 
 
 

Page 2



London Borough of Islington 

 16 October 2014 

5 PETITIONS AND QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 
PETITIONS: 
 
Councillor Paul Smith presented a petition on behalf of residents on the Shearling Estate. 
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 
a) Question from Anita Frizzarin to Councillor Claudia Webbe, Executive Member 
for Environment: 
 
Why does Hackney have lots of cycle-parking facilities on the road shaped like a car, and 
Islington doesn't have any of any shape? 
 
Reply: 
 
Thank you for your question, which is to do with cycle hangers; secure additional lockable 
cycle parking on public highways. We do, of course, provide cycle parking in Islington and 
have done so for years.  We use standard and functional designs which meet the regulations.  
We have 250 ‘Sheffield stands’ and 237 stands of other types on our streets.  The majority of 
cycle parking is on our footways and I think you are asking about parking on the highway.  
There is no reason why we cannot give permission for zero emission cycles to be parked on 
the highway.  The hangers themselves are expensive to buy, install and maintain, but this is a 
discussion we need to have and I am open to the council looking at this. 
 
Supplementary question: 
 
Drivers get fantastic facilities from Islington Council, which I don’t get as a cyclist. How come 
other boroughs have hundreds and you don’t have any? 
 
Reply: 
 
We have over 250 cycle parking facilities and we are a pro-cycling borough.  We will look at it 
to see if it is possible. 
 
b) Question from Caroline Allen to Councillor Claudia Webbe, Executive Member for 
Environment: 
 
'Paris has extended their Velib scheme to children. Are the councillors happy for the children 
in their borough to cycle to school?' 
 
Reply: 
 
Thank you for your question.  The Paris Velib scheme is like the Barclays Bike scheme in 
London and it is a strategic initiative which Transport for London would need to do.  We carry 
out lots of initiatives to encourage children to cycle including free primary school cycle 
training, Bikeability training in secondary schools.  We also offer free cycle training to adults 
and are funding projects where young people train as cycling instructors. We also have a 
20MPH scheme in place, which is now being enforced by the Police. I am very happy to 
lobby and to write to the Mayor to ask him to introduce an appropriate cycle scheme for 
children. 
 
Supplementary question: 
 

Page 3



London Borough of Islington 

 16 October 2014 

Local Authorities can apply for government funding for a local cycling plan.  Can you confirm 
you will apply for funding. 
 
Reply: 
 
Yes, we are fully engaged.  We are a pro-cycling borough.  We want to promote cycling and 
enable children and young people to cycle. 
 
c) Question from Sydney Leaman to Councillor Janet Burgess, Executive Member 
for Health and Wellbeing 
 
Over the summer the council offered free swimming-lessons to children across the borough. 
How have the council been monitoring the outcomes of this intervention? 
 
Reply: 
 
Thank you for your question.  We believes it is important that every child learns to swim and 
we introduced free swimming lessons nine years ago. We were careful to make sure the 
lessons are free as affordability should not be an issue for this important life skill and this 
strikes a chord with the Fairness Agenda. Priority is given to children in years 5 and 6 and 
those who qualify for concessionary discount. 
 
We also monitor the outcomes and receive an annual report each year from the leisure 
operator. This contains key data including attainment and improvement of those who 
undertake the lessons. We do this across seven criteria, which are  

 Place face in water 

 Float unaided 

 Kick unaided 5m 

 Retrieve object 

 Swim unaided 10m 

 Swim unaided 25m 

 Swim unaided 50m 
 
Supplementary question: 
 
Do you keep an eye on health inequalities between different groups and is there a legacy; 
how many people have been taught to swim? 
 
Reply: 
 
We don’t monitor individuals.  Schools do have swimming lessons themselves and there are 
swimming clubs in the borough.  We do all we can to encourage swimming by children and 
adults through our concessions. 
 
 

6 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL  
a) Question from Councillor Gary Heather to Councillor James Murray, Executive 
Member for Housing and Development 
 
Can Cllr Murray please confirm whether or not the Council will be represented at 'Le marché 
international des professionnels de l’immobilier' - the MIPIM conference - to be held at 
London Olympia, 15 - 17 October 2014? 
 
 

Page 4



London Borough of Islington 

 16 October 2014 

Reply: 
 
Non.  I have spoken to colleagues across the council to ensure that we are not attending Le 
marché international des professionnels de l’immobilier.  It is a property fair, which was 
opened by Boris Johnson, the same Mayor who is overseeing the sale of once publically 
owned land, at the Mount Pleasant post office site, for luxury housing, whilst we are building 
a new generation of homes for council rent.  I understand that there was originally a 
workshop at the event titled ‘Investing in affordable housing – is it worth it?’ but they have 
changed the title now.  It clear to us that it’s not just worth it, it’s what we were elected to do. 
 
Supplementary question: 
 
There are many deals likely to be done at the conference.  How can we ensure that new 
affordable housing is affordable and that it will continue to help people into the future? 
 
Reply: 
 
The term Affordable Housing gets twisted about, but we are absolutely clear on this.  Council 
or social rent is affordable in Islington.  People trust us to know what we mean.  Developers 
over the years have condemned us, but we have been clear and consistent.  When we build 
new Council or social housing we make sure, with social housing, that it goes to people who 
live locally first. The majority of tenants rent or have a social housing rent share.  We’ve 
extended the local priority scheme and outright sales will go to Islington residents in private 
rented accommodation.  Any homes we build will help people in Islington. 
 
b) Question from Councillor Caroline Russell to Councillor Janet Burgess, 
Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing 
 
Following the recent loss of the "Wild Islington" Highbury Grove mural, will the council commit 
to compiling a register of public art works to avoid any further surprise losses? 

 
Reply: 
 
The Council’s Heritage Service and Arts Service have been exploring for some time the 
development of a database of key public art works in the borough.  This database it is hoped 
would provide a publicly available  ‘on-line’ map of major works linked to the council’s GIS 
mapping system which would; 
 

 Identify and locate major public art works across the borough 

 Provide a visual of the work 

 Provide a brief description of the work and the artist  

 Act as an education resource and support other engagement activities such as public 
art walks and tours. 
The ‘back-end’ database would also include information relating to the current condition of 
key works and maintenance and conservation requirements.  There are of course cost 
implications to developing such a resource.  The Heritage Service and Arts Service are 
currently looking at potential funding opportunities to help develop the resource.  
 
I would also like to take this opportunity to say that there was no alternative to taking the 
mural down; bit were falling off during a week when the inquest was being held into the death 
of a woman who died after being hit by falling masonry; we couldn’t take the risk. 
 
 

Page 5



London Borough of Islington 

 16 October 2014 

Supplementary question: 
 
I have been unable to find any evidence of discussions about preserving the mural.  A council 
team had a HLF bid in to restore it. It looks as though health and safety is being used as an 
excuse. It could have been screened off.  Can you reassure me that something like this will 
not happen again. 
 
Reply: 
 
I can’t promise that there won’t be any dangerous bits of masonry about the whole borough.  I 
agree entirely about the importance of the mural, but the property department found it was 
dangerous and when something is so dangerous you have to act to protect the public. 
 
c) Question from Councillor Caroline Russell to Councillor Claudia Webbe, Executive 
Member for Environment 
 
Play Streets support communities and enable multiple generations to come together to play 
and socialise in the street.  Will Islington simplify our Play Streets signage arrangements in 
line with those of Hackney, Camden and Bristol and reassess the criteria for participation to 
maximise the number of side roads that are eligible?  
 
Reply: 
 
Play Streets are brilliant.  They bring communities together.  They are a source of pride and 
they provide somewhere safe to play.  I’ve seen the opportunities they provide and would 
encourage any Islington community to come together and apply.  We provide real 
opportunities and all Councillors here should promote them.  We want to see the numbers 
double or treble.  I want to come to site with you to see what we can do regarding the 
signage.  I believe that anything that enhances play is good.  Would you do something for me 
and check the Road Traffic Act, Chapter 3 – the traffic signs manual and check if we’ve got it 
wrong.  We’ve been told that our signage is right and it’s the same signage that other 
boroughs use.  
 
With regard to the second part of your question, some streets are deemed unsuitable 
unfortunately.  We publish the list, which includes streets on bus routes and diversion routes.  
We can’t do them everywhere, but where we can, my message is go forth and make these 
happen. 
 
Supplementary question: 
 
Councillors will be surprised to see a list of 684 streets on the website which are deemed 
unsuitable.  They are not all on bus diversion routes, main roads or transport routes.  Some 
hold street parties.  Can you please agree to look at the list so Councillors can encourage 
Play Streets.  
 
Reply: 
 
If you can identify from the list list that you think worthy to look at, we will. We have taken 
every opportunity.  The streets are included on the list based on advice from Transport for 
London and the Police and they are deemed them to be unsuitable.  
 

7 INCREASING PARTICIPATION IN LOCAL DEMOCRACY  
 
Councillor Alice Perry, seconded by Councillor Watts, moved the recommendations in the 
report. 

Page 6



London Borough of Islington 

 16 October 2014 

 
The recommendations were put to the vote and CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
a) That the changes detailed in points 4.1 to 4.5 of the report be agreed. 
 
b) That the Council’s procedures, practices and information provided to residents be 
amended to allow the changes detailed in points 4.1 to 4.4 of this report to take effect 
following the Council meeting on 16 October 2014 be agreed. 
 
c) That a report on tonight’s agenda proposes changes to the Constitution to give effect to the 
changes proposed in this report be noted. 
 
d) That the changes to the website described in point 4.5 will be incorporated into the project 
to replace the existing website and will go live when the new website is launched be agreed. 
 
 

8 AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION  
 
Councillor Alice Perry, seconded by Councillor Poole, moved the recommendations in the 
report. 
 
The recommendations were put to the vote and CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) That the Leader of the Council has approved the changes to delegation of Executive 
functions be noted. 

b) That Housing Executive be disbanded be agreed. 
c) That the terms of reference of the Housing Scrutiny Committee  be amended to 

include some of the responsibilities of the Housing Executive and to include as co-
opted members  three Elected Resident Representatives, be agreed.  

d) That the amendments to the Constitution set out in the attached Appendix be 
approved.  

e) That the Assistant Chief Executive (Governance and HR) be authorised to make any 
consequential amendments to the Constitution she considers necessary. 

 
 

9 CHIEF WHIP'S REPORT  
 
Councillor Alice Perry, seconded by Councillor Poole, moved the recommendations in the 
report. 
 
The recommendations were put to the vote and CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

a) Archway Town Centre Management Board 
That Councillor David Poyser be appointed to the vacant post on the Archway Town 
Centre Management Board with immediate effect, for the term of one year or until a 
successor is appointed.   
 

b) Islington United Charities  
That Councillor Michelline Safi Ngongo and Councillor Marian Spall be appointed with 

Page 7



London Borough of Islington 

 16 October 2014 

immediate effect for a term of four years or until a successor is appointed. 
 

c) Richard Cloudesley’s Charity 
That Councillor Joe Caluori be appointed as the representative on Richard 
Cloudesley’s Charity with immediate effect for a term of three years or until a 
successor is appointed.   
 

d) Policy and Performance Scrutiny Committee  
That Councillor Jenny Kay be appointed as a member of the Policy and Performance 
Scrutiny Committee, to replace Councillor Aysegul Erdogan, with immediate effect for 
a term of one year or until a successor is appointed. 
 

e) Health and Wellbeing Board  
That, in accordance with statutory requirements, Sean McLaughlin, Corporate 
Director of Housing and Adult Social Services, is a member of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, be confirmed and noted. 
 
 

10 NOTICES OF MOTION  

 
MOTION 1. SUPPORTING THE ‘RENTERS MANIFESTO’  
 
Councillor Russell moved the motion. Councillor Murray, seconded by Councillor Gantly, 
moved an amendment to the motion. 
 
The recommendations in the amended motion were put to the vote and CARRIED. 

The motion as amended was put to the vote and CARRIED. 

RESOLVED: 
 

a) To continue making a difference for private tenants in Islington with innovative policies 
and to work with Islington Private Tenants to campaign for a fairer deal for residents.   
 

b) To welcome and support the Member of Parliament for Islington North’s Regulation of 
the Private Rented Sector Bill 2012-13. 
 

c) To continue to make representations to both political parties, the Mayor of London, 
and future Mayoral candidates, for more radical action to tackle the housing crisis in 
London across tenures.  

 
 
MOTION 2. OPPOSING THE MAYOR OF LONDON’S UNDERGROUND MOTORWAY 
 
Councillor Webbe, seconded by Councillor Erdogan, moved the motion, and with the consent 
of the meeting, moved an alteration to motion.  Councillors Convery and Klute contributed to 
the debate. 
 
The recommendations were put to the vote and CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 
a) To reaffirm our opposition to the proposed underground motorway through Islington, and to 
the proposed junction at Highbury & Islington  
 

Page 8



London Borough of Islington 

 16 October 2014 

b) To call upon the Council’s Executive to respond to the Mayor of London’s consultation on 
the ‘Infrastructure Plan 2050’ detailing this Council’s strong opposition to the proposed 
underground motorway.  
 
 
MOTION 3. ORGAN DONATION  
 
Councillor Burgess, seconded by Councillor Klute, moved the motion.   
 
The recommendations were put to the vote and CARRIED. 
 
RESOLVED:  
  
a) To promote and support organ donation in partnership with Whittington Health, Haringey 
Council and NHS Blood and Transplant. - This partnership is the first of its kind between local 
councils and an integrated care organisation and is a further mark of our commitment to 
deliver for our community.  
 
b) To raise awareness to enable more people with life threatening conditions to benefit from 
organ donations from people whose lives have been cruelly cut short.  
 
c) To encourage the Government to investigate implementing a nationwide soft opt-out organ 
donation system in line with the model which is due to be introduced by the National 
Assembly for Wales.  
 
 

 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 9.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MAYOR 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
COUNCIL MEETING – 4 December 2014 

 
 
REVISED REPORT OF THE CHIEF WHIP                                                                 
                        

 
 

1. AMENDMENT TO THE CONSITITUTION  
 
To change the Council’s Constitution to allow an additional 20 minutes for Youth 
Council Questions.  The amendment to the wording is as follows: 
 
Part 4, Rule 19.2 Questions 
 
(d) The time set aside for questions shall be 60 minutes.  At the meeting following the 
Annual meeting and at each alternate meeting for the rest of the municipal year, up to 
20 minutes additional of this time shall be set aside for questions from the Youth 
Council. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
To change the Council’s Constitution to allow an additional 20 minutes for Youth 
Council Questions.   

 
 
2. APPOINTMENT TO GREATER LONDON ENTERPRISE (GLE) 

 
To appoint Councillor Richard Watts as the Council’s representative to the GLE to 
replace Councillor Joe Calouri 
 
Recommendation: 
 
To agree the appointment of Councillor Richard Watts as the Council’s representative 
to the GLE with immediate effect until 2015/16 or until a successor is appointed. 
  

3.   APPOINTMENTS TO HOUSING SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
To appoint Rose-Marie McDonald and James Rooke as co-opted members of the 
Housing Scrutiny Committee.  
 
Recommendation: 
 
To agree the appointment of ose-Marie McDonald and James Rooke as co-opted 
members of the Housing Scrutiny Committee until 30th September 2016 or until a 
successor is appointed. 

 
 
COUNCILLOR ALICE PERRY 
Chief Whip 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

COUNCIL MEETING – 4 DECEMBER 2014 
 
 
 
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
a 

 
Question from Kate Calvert to Councillor Claudia Webbe, Executive Member 
for Environment. 
 
Does the Council support improvement to Archway gyratory for all users? 
 
 

b Question from Anita Frizzarin to Councillor Claudia Webbe, Executive Member 
for Environment. 
 
How many bicycle hangers have been installed since I asked about this at the 
last full council and Cllr Webbe said there are no obstacles to putting cycle 
parking on the road? 
 

c Question from David Lincoln to Councillor Claudia Webbe, Executive Member 
for Environment. 
 
Holloway School recently converted its impressive bicycle parking racks into 
picnic benches. This is sadly indicative of the failure to get Islington's children 
cycling to school despite many children saying  that cycling is their preferred 
transport option and despite the tremendous health & social benefits that could 
be achieved by incorporating this physical activity into children's daily routine . 
Now that the 'Tufnell Park Loop' bid for Cycle to School Partnership funding 
has been rejected by TFL, what practical steps will the council take to facilitate 
a sustained increase in children cycling to school and play in Tufnell Park? 
 
 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

COUNCIL MEETING – 4 DECEMBER 2014 
 
 
 
 
QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

  
 

a 
 
Councillor Raphael Andrews to Councillor Claudia Webbe, Executive Member 
for Environment. 
 
Can the Executive Member explain what is ben done to improve the safety of 
cyclist in Owen street and  Margery Street Cycle paths  and  also update the 
what action is been taken to deal with the Clerkenwell road accident. 
 

b Councillor Clare Jeapes to Councillor Andy Hull, Executive Member for Finance 
and Performance.  
 
Can the Executive Member for Finance please explain the importance he 
attaches to Islington's Ecology Centre in drawing up proposals for next year's 
budget? 

 
c Councillor Gary Poole to Councillor Paul Convery, Executive Member for 

Community Safety. 
 
How many arrests have there been for possession of Cannabis, in Islington in 
the past 12 months?" 
 

d Councillor Caroline Russell to Councillor Claudia Webbe, Executive Member 
for Environment. 
 
Since bringing grounds maintenance in house, how many staff have been 
employed through agencies rather than by the council direct? And what has the 
cost of this been compared with direct employment? 
 

e Councillor Caroline Russell to Councillor Claudia Webbe, Executive Member 
for Environment. 
 
At our last Full Council Meeting Cllr Webbe declared that Islington is a "pro-
cycling borough".  Will she agree to broaden the remit to be more inclusive and 
commit to being a pro-walking-and-cycling borough with a road danger 
reduction approach and to prioritise trips involving physical activity and public 
transport? 
 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

Finance Department, N7 7EP 

 
 
Report of: Executive Member for Finance and Performance 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

The Council Tax Support Scheme for 2015/16 

1. Synopsis 

1.1 The Council Tax Support Scheme for 2014/15 was agreed by Council on 5 
December 2013. Schemes have to be agreed by the full Council by 31st January 
for each subsequent year, even if they remain unchanged. This report seeks 
approval for the 2015/16 Council Tax Support Scheme which, apart from 
housekeeping changes, remains unchanged from the one that we have currently 
adopted. 

 
1.2 There is also a legal requirement to affirm on an annual basis the council tax 

discounts and exemptions for empty properties and the 50% empty rates 
premium. This is to ensure that we can retain the discounts, exemptions and 
premiums approved at full Council last year.  

  

2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 To agree to adopt the Council Tax Support Scheme for 2015/16 as contained in 

Appendix A.  
 
2.2 To note that the scheme for 2015/16 is proposed to be funded from the Council’s 

budget and that this will be reflected in the budget presented to full Council in 
February 2015. 

 
2.3 To retain the amendments to council tax agreed at full Council on 5 December 

2013. To be clear, this means that from 1 April 2015 the following will continue to 
apply:  
1) council tax exemption classes A and C will have a discount of 0% for all cases.  

2) council tax discount for second homes will be 0% in all cases  

Meeting of  

 

Date 

 

Wards 

Council 

 

4th December 2014 All 

Page 17

Agenda Item 10



3) council tax discount for empty furnished lets will be 0% in all cases  

4) a premium of 50% will be charged on the council tax of all properties that have 
remained empty for over 2 years in all cases.  

    

3 Background  
 
3.1 As a result of the Government’s abolition of council tax benefit from 1st April 2013 

and a reduction in our funding from the Government of at least £2.9m, we have 
had to propose and consult on a new Council Tax Support scheme which 
commenced on 1 April 2013. The Council disagreed with the abolition of council 
tax benefit and the accompanying 10% reduction in funding and actively 
campaigned against it. Nevertheless, we had no choice but to move forward and 
to design a scheme that we considered provided the fairest outcome for all our 

residents in the circumstances.   
   
3.2 There is a legal requirement for the Council to agree the scheme each year, and 

a further requirement to consult with residents if the scheme is changed. At full 
Council on 5 December 2013 the scheme was approved unchanged (other than 
housekeeping changes) for the year 2014/15. This report is once again 
recommending a continuation of the current scheme for 2015/16.  

 

4 Detail leading to our recommended Council Tax Support scheme 
 

The scheme adopted for 2013/14 and retained for 2014/15 
 

4.1 The Council Tax Support Scheme is designed: 

 to reduce an assessment made under the council tax benefit rules by 8.5% 
for working age claimants (pensioners are excluded from any reduction by 
law);  

 to allow a £100 older person discount for residents aged 65 or over who 
are liable for council tax; 

 to offer a cash back reduction of £15 if a person pays their council tax in 
full by the end of the year. 

 
4.2 In addition to this we have a £125,000 Council Tax Support welfare provision fund 

within the Islington Resident Support Scheme to help provide a safety net for 
claimants who struggle to cope with the impact of being charged council tax.  

 
4.3 The Council implemented this scheme and retained it last year after taking into 

account the: 

 views of residents, stakeholders and partners derived from an extensive 
consultation for the initial scheme; 

 equality impact assessment that was carried out prior to scheme approval 
and reviewed last year; 

 provision of a transition grant by the Department for Communities and 
Local Government for the first year only which could only be accessed if 
the reduction was capped at 8.5%. The Council element of the grant (i.e 
not including the GLA) was £548,000 

 
 

Page 18



The reason for adopting the scheme for the last 2 years in the way that we have 
 
4.4 The majority of the responses from the public consultation contained some 

expression of concern about residents’ current circumstances – financial difficulty, 
welfare reform, supporting the family, coping through disability, finding a job. They 
appeared worried about how this change would affect them personally. In that 
sense it was considered to be a reasonable response to the consultation to limit 
the reduction to 8.5% to at least provide residents with a greater opportunity to 
adapt to this change.  

 
4.5 There was hardly any concern raised about the older person’s discount from the 

general public consultation, although this was picked up at the stakeholder 
forums where a number felt that the time was right for this to be removed. 
However, only 1.8% of the respondents to the consultation using the survey forms 

disagreed with the older person’s discount.  
 
4.6 There was a clear message that we should do all we can to reduce the burden of 

the Government cut. We went to the full extent of the legal scope for changing 
council tax exemptions and discounts and approved the removal of all the 
exemptions and discounts that the change to the law allowed relating to empty 
properties and agreed to charge a premium of 50% on properties standing empty 
for more than 2 years. We considered this to be the right approach, not least 
because we wanted to continue to see properties occupied rather than standing 
empty. 

 
4.7 The majority of people supported the cash back idea and so this was introduced. 
 
4.8 People were concerned about the way that we would enforce against non-

payment of council tax in the light of people losing their council tax benefit. We 
wanted to be flexible and fair for people receiving council tax support. Whereas in 
the past we would normally seek to get a summons and liability order before 
agreeing payment plans with people, we now seek to agree reasonable plans with 
people prior to it reaching enforcement stage. Furthermore we haven’t used 
bailiffs for council tax support cases and are seeking to link people to the council 
tax welfare provision in the Resident Support Scheme for residents that are facing 
difficulty and are prepared to work with us to find a way forward. Council tax 
collection held up reasonably well last year at 95.9% with only a small reduction 
from the previous year which was 96.8%. 

 

 The reason for leaving the scheme unchanged for 2015/16  
 
4.9 The current position is that we are just 20 months into a new scheme. It is too 

early to decide on whether the conditions that we introduced after much thought 
and extensive consultation should be changed at this stage. The emerging 
position as set out in the Resident Impact Assessment (Appendix B) is that most 
residents affected have been able to respond to the changes in council tax 
support and are making payments. We have received minimal complaints or 
appeals and the requirement for support from the council tax welfare fund has not 
been as high as expected at this stage. We are pleased that the work that we 
have undertaken to help people respond to these changes has to date largely 
been successful. 

Page 19



 
4.10 Nevertheless, we are acutely aware that, for the last 2 years, the full impact of the 

welfare reform changes have largely been masked by temporary money provided 
by the Government in the form of Discretionary Housing Payments. These have 
been used to mitigate the impact of Local Housing Allowance reductions for 
private tenants, benefit cap restrictions and the large scale reduction in housing 
benefit as a result of the ‘spare room subsidy’ or ‘bedroom tax’. We are also 
aware that many could soon start to be impacted by the loss of Employment 
Support Allowance and the commencement of Personal Independence Payments 
which will most likely lead to the reduction or loss of disability benefits for many of 
our residents.  

 
4.11 We are concerned at the cumulative impact that will be felt when these benefits 

are lost and the temporary money from the Government to support affected 

residents dries up. In this context, we consider that the position as set out in 4.4 
above still applies and it would be an appropriate and fair response from us to 
seek to continue to limit the council tax support reduction to 8.5% for 2015/16. We 
also see no emerging evidence that would compel us to remove the older 
person’s discount or the cash back offer at this stage. 

 
4.12 The transition grant of £548,000 that allowed us to cap the reduction to 8.5% for 

2013/14 was not provided last year. As a result, the continuation of the scheme 
was funded from a one-off Government grant relating to the return to the council 
of the unused top slice funding for the national New Homes Bonus Scheme for 
2014/15.  It is proposed that for 2015/16 the scheme is funded from the 
Council’s budget and this will be reflected in the budget proposals to be agreed 
by the full Council in February 2015. 

 
4.13 We are also recommending no change to the discounts, exemptions and 

premium charged on empty council tax properties for the reasons given in 
paragraph 4.6 above.   

 
 Housekeeping changes for the 2015/16 scheme 
 
4.14 Although we are recommending that the Council Tax Support scheme remains 

unchanged for 2015/16, with the basis for award assessment remaining the same, 
there are some insertions and deletions to the 2015/16 scheme when compared 
to the 2014/15 scheme and these are marked in Appendix A. 

 

4.15 These are changes to remove clauses that are out of date or to change wording to 
clarify the original intention (i.e for the cash back award). Members are asked to 
agree the new scheme for 2015/16 in the light of these housekeeping changes. 

 

5 Financial Implications 

5.1 The first year of the Council Tax Support Scheme (2013/14) was funded from a 
one-off transitional grant from the Government. This year the continuation of the 
scheme was funded from a one-off Government grant relating to the return to the 
Council of the unused top slice funding for the national New Homes Bonus 
Scheme.  It is proposed that for 2015/16 the scheme is funded from the 

Page 20



council’s budget and that this will be reflected in the budget proposals to be 
agreed by the Council in February 2015. Continuing the scheme is estimated to  
cost £800,000 in 2015/16. 

 

6  Equality Implications 

6.1  The Council Tax Support Scheme Resident Impact Assessment is attached as 
Appendix B. This can be summarised as follows: 

 The Council is choosing to keep most criteria for the Council Tax Support scheme 
the same as for Council Tax Benefit because it considers this to be fair, with extra 
premiums already awarded for disability, children and incentives for employment. 

 The Council Tax Support scheme provides full protection for older people who are 
a vulnerable group that we would like to continue to support.  

 In relation to older people aged 65 or over, Islington’s minimum Council Tax 
Support of £100 means that there will be fewer marginal cases of older people 
who are not quite poor enough to receive the benefit but who are still 
economically fragile.  People in this category are less likely to access, or be able 
to access, the labour market.  

 Retaining the 8.5% reduction despite the loss of the government grant helps all 
residents who will be impacted by the cumulative loss of other benefits from the 
government’s welfare reforms. 

 Applying the 8.5% reduction to the end of the benefit award (bottom slicing) rather 
than taking this from the liability (top slicing), works out better for people on partial 
benefit and it was people on partial benefit who were most concerned about the 
financial impact of the changes to them personally. 

  
  

6.2 The Resident Impact Assessment identified the following as the key mitigation 
options: 

 

 The Council’s limiting of the reduction in benefit from what would be in the region 
of 18% to 8.5% allows affected claimants greater opportunity to adapt to their 
financial circumstances. 

 The Council can continue to help to finance the costs of limiting the reduction in 
benefit to 8.5% as a result of adopting the other changes to the Local 
Government Finance Act on exemptions and discounts (empties) by charging fully 
for class A and C empty properties, second homes and empty furnished lets. 

 The Council can continue to limit the impact of the Council Tax Support by 
adopting a non-standard council tax recovery process for council tax support 
recipients where appropriate. 

 The Council can mitigate for residents who cannot pay through the use of the 
council tax welfare provision (or other funds) in the Residents Support Scheme.    

7. Legal Implications 

7.1 The Council Tax Support scheme is considered to be lawful. There are no 
changes to the terms of the scheme for 2015/16, so the requirement now is for full 
Council to agree the scheme for its continuing adoption from 1 April 2015 for the 
full 2015/16 council tax year. 

 

Page 21



 

8 Conclusion and Reason for Recommendations 
 

8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.2 
 

The Government was wrong to abolish Council Tax Benefit and to pass the burden 
of reduced funding for Council Tax Support to local residents. We have created a 
local Council Tax Support scheme in line with the law and we have introduced a 
universal 8.5% reduction to existing council tax benefit levels because we believe 
that this was the fairest way to introduce this for our residents in the 
circumstances. From 2014/15 we lost the grant that enabled us to limit the 
reduction to 8.5% but, in view of the cumulative impact of welfare reform changes, 
we considered it reasonable to continue making the reduction by using one off 
resources and we consider that it is appropriate to continue this into 2015/16.  This 
will be incorporated in the budget proposals for agreement in February 2015. 
 

We have continued to award a minimum reduction of £100 for older people and 
have included a cash back element as an incentive to those who have to pay the 
additional council tax that will be charged. We have introduced a safety net in the 
form of the Resident Support Scheme providing support if the additional council tax 
causes exceptional hardship. This report recommends that the Council Tax 
Support scheme is agreed and should continue unchanged from 1 April 2015. 
  

8.3 This report also recommends that we continue with the changes made in 2013/14 
and retained in 2014/15 to discounts and exemptions for empty properties and for 
the charging of a 50% premium for properties left empty for more than 2 years. 
This helps to bridge the gap imposed by the Government in the council tax support 
scheme funding so that, in line with our principles, those who are able to pay more 
will continue to support those who are less able to pay.  

 

Background papers:  Appendix A Council Tax Support Scheme for 2015/16 

     Appendix B Resident Impact Assessment 

 
Final Report Clearance 

 
Signed by 

 

 
25 November 
2014 

 Executive Member of Finance and Performance Date 
 

Report Author: 

Ian Adams 

Director, Financial Operations and Customer Services 

Tel: 02075274796 

ian.adams@islington.gov.uk  

Page 22



 
 

 

 

 

London Borough of 

Islington 

 

Council Tax Support 

Scheme 
 

 

Draft for approval by Council on 4 December 2014 

Appendix A to the report on the Council Tax Support 

scheme 2015/16 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 23



1| P a g e  
 

 
 
Islington Council: Council Tax Support Scheme  
 

1. This document and the law 
 
This document is the London Borough of Islington’s Council Tax Reduction Scheme, set out under 
section 13A (2) [substituted by clause 8 of the Local government finance Bill] of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. 
 
This scheme, referred to as Council Tax Support (CTS), has been agreed based on: 
 

 the outcome of a public consultation exercise carried out between 12 October and 30 
November 2012; 

 the Equality Impact Assessment made in relation to the scheme and the consultation 
exercise and the subsequent Resident Impact Assessment [Delete Assessment] [Insert 
Assessments]; 

 consideration and a decision [Delete a decision] [Insert decisions] made by the full 
Council.  

 

2. Introduction 
 
CTS reduces the amount of council tax a person has to pay based on an assessment made by 
Islington Council (the Council). As the Billing Authority, council tax is raised and charged by the 
Council and the CTS assessed by the Council can only be applied to council tax bills issued by the 
Council. 
 
This scheme sets out rules for four classes of claimants. The amount of CTS shall be determined 
through means testing. As such the income and capital of the claimant and any partner or partners 
in the case of a polygamous couple in the household shall be taken into account. It is considered 
that eligibility for CTS is defined by the terms of the existing [Delete existing] Council Tax Benefit 
(CTB) scheme as set out in the Social Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, the Social 
Security Administration Act 1992, the Council Tax Benefit Regulations 2006 and the Housing 
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit (Decisions and Appeals) Regulations 2001. These will hereafter 
be known as the Regulations and these Regulations set out how CTB is claimed, how it is 
calculated and how it is paid. This scheme proposes that the principles and methods set out in 
those Regulations be used to determine CTS, except where amendments are set out in this 
scheme or by statute under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended) and 
accompanying legislation. For the avoidance of doubt where there is a difference or conflict 
between the Regulations and the Council’s CTS scheme, then it is the Council’s CTS scheme as 
set out here that will take precedence and be applied. 
 

3 Making a claim  
 
A claim must be made in respect of a person who is resident in the dwelling concerned, and liable 
for payment of council tax. A valid claim can be made by the person liable for council tax or by 
their appointed representative.  
 
3.1 How to claim  
 
3.1.1.Except where paragraph 3.1.2. applies, an application shall be required for all new claims 
from 1 April 2013. A person liable to pay council tax will be able to make a claim using any of the 

Page 24



1| P a g e  
 

methods the Council provides for.  Generally claims can be made via telephone, email, the 
Council website, in writing or in person at Islington Council offices, or to the Department of Work 
and Pensions (DWP) and Jobcentres. A valid claim must be accompanied by the necessary 
supporting evidence.  
 
3.1.2 For claimants entitled to the reduction in class 2 only (defined below), where it is possible for 
the Council to award CTS without application it shall do so. Indeed, for this provision an 
identification by the Council that a person would be entitled to this reduction by virtue of relevant 
detail already obtained by the Council, may be enough to constitute a claim and to enable the 
award of a reduction. If a reduction cannot be awarded by the Council automatically under class 2, 
it shall be the duty of the person or persons with a council tax liability to claim this using the 
application process prescribed on the Islington Council website, and this application shall be 
required to be received in the council tax year for which the reduction applies. 

 

4 Classes of reduction 

4.1  It is considered that the Council has 4 classes of reduction in its CTS scheme. The classes 

below also identify the persons that the reduction will cover. 

Class 1 – A person or persons of pension credit age have protection prescribed in the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended). The council tax reduction shall be assessed in 
accordance with the provisions of that Act. 
 
Class 2 – A person or persons with a council tax liability on 1st April [Delete 2014] [Insert 2015] 
aged 65 or over shall be entitled to a minimum reduction of £100 per annum, unless the council 
tax liability is less than this in which case it shall match the annual council tax liability. 
 
Class 3 – A person or persons not entitled to protection under class 1 who would be entitled to 
CTB based on the Regulations at 31 March 2013, shall be entitled to a council tax reduction based 
on that notional CTB entitlement less 8.5%. 
 
Class 4 – A person or persons entitled to a council tax reduction under Class 3 shall be entitled to 
a cash back reduction of £15 if the balance on their council tax account is £15 or less as at 1st 
February [Delete 2015] [ Insert 2016] or the cash back reduction will be £15 if they are paying by 
direct debit as at  1st February 2015 [Delete 2015] [Insert 2016] and they have a live account with 
a balance that will be £Nil by 31 March 2015 [Delete 2015] [Insert 2016] if the scheduled 
instalments are paid. For both reductions the person or persons must have had a [Insert 
continuous] council tax liability from 1 October 2015 or before and must have a £NIL balance 
owing for any previous address.   
 
4.2 Making changes to the dates for the classes of reduction 
 
For Classes 2, 3 and 4 the Council may substitute any of the dates provided with a date or dates 
of its choosing. This will enable the scheme to continue into future years. Any changes to dates 
shall be published on the website on 31 January of the year that immediately precedes the new 
council tax year to which the CTS shall apply. 
 
 
4.3 Making changes to the values for the classes of reduction 
 
For Class 2, for the minimum reduction the Council may substitute any amount it chooses, 
including £Nil. Should a change be made for a future council tax year this shall be published on 

Page 25



1| P a g e  
 

the website on 31 January of the year that immediately precedes the new council tax year to which 
the CTS shall apply. 
 
For Class 3 the Council may substitute 8.5% with any amount it chooses but capped at 25%. 
Should a change be made for a future council tax year this shall be published on the website on 
31 January of the year that immediately precedes the new council tax year to which the CTS shall 
apply. 
 
For Class 4 the Council may substitute the values (currently £15 for both methods of payment 
stated) with any amount or amounts it chooses, including £NIL. Should a change be made for a 
future council tax year this shall be published on the website on 31 January of the year that 
immediately precedes the new council tax year to which the CTS shall apply. 
 
4.4 Administering the reduction 
 
For all Classes, other than class 4, the reduction shall be made to the council tax liability in the 
council tax year that the CTS applies. 
   
For Class 4 the Council can administer this by including it as a reduction from the council tax 
liability for the following council tax year. However if this happens, the reduction shall be treated as 
having been made to the council tax liability in the same council tax year that the CTS applies.  
For the avoidance of doubt, it shall not be paid directly to the person or persons with a council tax 
liability. 
 

5. Exceptions to the Regulations 

 
This  scheme proposes that the principals and methods set out in the Regulations be used to 
determine CTS, except where amendments are set out in this  scheme or by statute under the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended) and accompanying legislation.   
 
The exceptions to these Regulations (or clarifications) are set out below: 
 
5.1 Information and evidence 
 
The Council may accept any information or evidence that it sees fit to support a claim for CTS and 
may receive this in any way that it sees fit. As a guide, it shall publish what is expected on the 
Council’s website. If all the information or evidence it needs is not submitted, the Council shall 
seek to make contact with the claimant once to obtain this. If the claimant does not reply or 
provide the information required within one month of the first contact made with or by the Council 
in relation to the application, the Council may decide to treat the claim as incomplete and refuse 
the CTS application. The Council may extend the one month time limit if it thinks it is reasonable to 
give more time but in any case this shall not be extended beyond 3 months after the date of the 
first contact made with or by the Council in relation to the application. 
 
5.2 Treatment of income 
 
For the purpose of making an assessment under the CTS scheme, all income shall be treated in 
accordance with the Regulations. However from time to time the Government may reform welfare 
benefits and introduce new benefits or replace them with equivalent benefits of a different name. 
Under the Regulations, some prescribed income is disregarded, some prescribed income has an 
impact on the premiums that can be applied to a person’s applicable amount, and some 
prescribed income has an impact on the level of a non dependant deduction(s) to be applied. In 

Page 26



1| P a g e  
 

addition to this, some prescribed income passports a person to full entitlement to CTB, albeit 
subject to certain deductions such as a non dependant deduction. 
 
It is the intention of the Council for the CTS scheme, that where such income is replaced by the 
Government by an equivalent benefit or where new benefits are introduced, that these changes 
should attract the appropriate and equivalent income disregard, premium for the applicable 
amount and non dependant deduction. It is also the intention to continue to passport an equivalent 
benefit to full entitlement to notional CTB to allow the council tax reduction to be calculated under 
the CTS.   
 
To achieve this, when a new welfare benefit (income) is introduced by Government, the Council 
shall decide for the purposes of applying the Regulations :  

 whether it should be disregarded; and or  

 the premium (if any) that it should attract; and/or 

 the non dependant deduction that should apply (if any); and/or 

 whether it should be treated as income that would passport a person to full notional CTB 
entitlement 

 
Once the Council has decided how changes to other welfare benefits shall be treated for the 
purposes of applying the Regulations, the Council shall publish this detail on the Council website 
prior to the commencement of this new welfare benefit. 
 
The Regulations currently afford the Council the discretion to disregard war widows pension and 
war disablement allowance. The Council will continue to disregard this income for the purposes of 
assessing CTS.  
 
5.3 Uprating of premiums, allowances, disregards and deductions (the components)  
 
Uprating means an increase in the value of the components that are used to make an assessment 
under the Regulations from one council tax year to another. This  scheme provides that the 
Council shall uprate all the components for the year to which the CTS applies in accordance with 
the Government’s calculation for uprating these generally for all welfare benefits for that year. For 
the avoidance of doubt, once the uprating has taken place, for future years the latest uprated 
amounts shall be the subject of future uprating.  
  
5.4 Decisions and notifications of decisions  
 
The Council shall make a decision on a claim within a reasonable timescale of receiving all 
required information and evidence. In order to inform a claimant of the decision the Council shall 
send them a revised council tax bill showing the amount and period of the CTS award.  The bill 
itself shall be formal notification of the CTS decision unless CTS is not awarded as a result of us 
deciding to treat the claim as incomplete or the person does not qualify for CTS, in which case a 
letter will be issued to the claimant. Claimants may request a statement of reasons to explain how 
the award was calculated. The council tax bill shall include a person’s appeal rights, how they can 
request a statement of reasons and details of how to apply for further discretionary help from the 
Council Tax Welfare provision in the Resident Support Scheme.  The claimant can elect to receive 
their bill by post or by using Islington’s web portal ‘My eAccount’ also known as e-billing. For the 
avoidance of doubt, the requirements in the Regulations to notify a person of their CTB entitlement 
In a manner and including detail prescribed by these Regulations shall be revoked for the 
purposes of the CTS scheme.    
 
5.5 How CTS will be paid 
 

Page 27



1| P a g e  
 

All CTS will be ‘paid’ by crediting the amount of CTS against the claimant’s council tax liability to 
reduce the bill. Should a bill that attracts a council tax reduction be in credit at the point that a 
council tax liability is ended, the Council may use that credit to reduce any other sum that is owed 
to the Council by that person.   
 
5.6  Changes of circumstances 
 
The recipient of CTS or his appointee must notify the Council of any change to their household 
circumstances, income or capital that may affect the amount of CTS they are entitled to. Any 
change of circumstances must be reported within one calendar month of the change happening. 
Any change can be reported to Islington Council by telephone, email, fax, via website or in writing. 
Supporting information may be required. Each material change shall result in a recalculation of 
CTS entitlement and a revised bill if appropriate. 
 
A process for reviewing current CTS entitlement may be implemented by the Council. CTS may be 
reviewed at any time after its commencement. Failure of the claimant to fulfil any reasonable 
request made by the Council during a review of their CTS award shall result in the termination of 
that CTS award from the commencement date of the review. 
 
5.7 Appeals 
 
If the claimant disagrees with the CTS award or non-award following a claim, they can request that 
the Council looks at this again (this is known as an application for revision). They must do this 
within one month of the date of the council tax bill that shows the amount and period of their CTS 
or within month of the date of their CTS non-qualification letter. [Insert If an appeal made by the 
same claimant about a housing benefit decision would also impact on CTS, the Council 
may also treat this as an appeal against CTS if it is made within one month of the date of 
the council tax bill that shows the amount and period of their CTS]. The Council shall check if 
the decision is correct and inform the claimant of its decision in writing. If the Council believes that 
its decision is correct or the claimant does not receive a response from the Council within 2 
months, the claimant has another 2 months to appeal to the Valuation Tribunal where a final 
decision can be made.  Any appeal against a decision regarding CTS will not mean that payments 
of council tax may be withheld. Payments must be made as they fall due and if an appeal is 
successful any additional CTS award shall be credited against the claimant’s council tax liability at 
that time as directed. 
 

6. General Provisions   

6.1 Council Tax Welfare Provision 
 
There is a welfare scheme available for council tax payers receiving CTS experiencing exceptional 
hardship.  This is part of the Resident Support Scheme and the procedure for application is 
contained within the detail of the Resident Support Scheme approved by the Council’s Executive. 
This will be administered jointly by the Council and Cripplegate. 
 
6.2 Fraud 
 
The Council will investigate any case where it has reason to believe that an amount of CTS has 
been awarded as a result of a claim which is fraudulent in any respect. This will include any 
incidence of a claimant not notifying the Council of any change in household circumstances, 
income or capital that results in a higher reduction under the CTS scheme than a person is due  
 
 

Page 28

http://www.valuationtribunal.gov.uk/A1Form.aspx
http://www.valuationtribunal.gov.uk/A1Form.aspx


1| P a g e  
 

 
 
6.3 Consultation 
 
The Council recognises its legal duty to consult should there be future changes to the scheme. 
However from time to time the council will need to make minor changes to the practice and 
operation of the scheme and should these occur we will consult by way of publishing a notice on 
the Council’s website during the last 2 weeks of January of the year that immediately precedes the 
new council tax year to which the CTS shall apply. A consultee shall then have until 31 January of 
that same month to respond to this notice. The Council officers delegated to operate the scheme 
will give due regard to this response.  

6.4 Delegation 

The Council shall delegate the operation of this scheme to the Corporate Director of Finance and 
he will designate the appropriate officers to undertake this role. Currently these officers are all 
placed in the Financial Operations and Customer Services Directorate of the Council’s Finance 
Department. 

6.5 The Applicable Regulations  
 
The Regulations in force shall be those Regulations (as amended) that are in force the day prior to 
the commencement of the CTS Scheme on 1 April 2013 
 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Appendix B to Council report on the  
Council Tax Support Scheme 15/16 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

Resident Impact Assessment 
Initial Screening and full assessment of 
Islington’s Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



 

2 
 

 
 
 
Contents 
 

Click to navigate to sections 
 
1. Introduction and context 

2. Initial ScreeningInitial Screening 

3. The proposal Initial Screening 

4. Equality Impacts 

5. Socio-economic, safeguarding and Human Rights impacts 

6. Summary: key findings of the RIA  

Page 32



 

3 
 

1. Introduction and context 
 
A Resident Impact Assessment (RIA) is a way of systematically and thoroughly assessing 
policies against the Council’s responsibilities in relation to the Public Sector Equality Duty, 
Human Rights and Safeguarding. 
 
The RIA will describe the CTS scheme its intended purpose and how it has been implemented. 
It will detail which residents are expected to be affected by the policy and the expected impact 
in relation to: 

o The Public Sector Equality Duty,  

o Safeguarding responsibilities; and 

o Human Rights legislation, specifically with regard to Article 3 (Inhuman Treatment) 

and Article 8 (Right to Private Life) 

We will identify evidence, such as data and research used to assess the impact of the CTS 

scheme and identify options for addressing issues raised by the assessments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Initial Screening 

Please enter your responses in the space provided (the text boxes will expand as necessary): 
 

a) Title of new or changed policy, procedure, function, 

service activity or financial decision being assessed: 

Council Tax Support Scheme 
(CTS) 

b) Department and section: Finance, Financial Operations 

c) Name and contact details of assessor: Andrew Spigarolo, Financial 
Operations, 
andrew.spigarolo@islington.gov.uk 

d) Date initial screening assessment started: 30/10/2014 

e) Describe the main aim or purpose of the proposed new 

or changed policy, etc. and the intended outcomes: 

To help low income, council tax 
charge payers, pay their Council Tax  

f) Can this proposal be considered as part of a broader 

Resident Impact Assessment?  For example it may be 

more appropriate to carry out an assessment of a 

divisional restructure rather than the restructure of a 

single team. 

No 

g) Are there any negative equality impacts as a result of the proposal?  Please complete the 

table below: 

 

Select Yes, No or Unknown  by clicking on the ‘Choose an item’ boxes below and enter text in 
the text boxes in the right-hand column: 

 

Page 33

file://Islington/Service%20Areas/Corporate_Strategy/Strategy,%20Equality%20&%20Performance/Resident%20Impact%20Assessments/RIA%20Guidance/RIA%20Guidance%20v1.1.doc%23psed


 

4 
 

Protected 
characteristics 

1. Will the 
proposal 
discriminate? 

2. Will the 
proposal 
undermine 
equality of 
opportunity? 

 

 

3. Will the 
proposal have 
a negative 
impact on 
relations? 

 

 

What evidence are you 
using to predict this 
impact?  

 

Age No No No  Described in Section 4 
 

Disability No No No Described in Section 4 
 

Gender 
reassignment 

No No No Described in Section 4 
 

Marriage and civil 
partnerships1 

No N/A N/A Described in Section 4 
 

Race No No No Described in Section 4 
 

Religion/belief No No No Described in Section 4 
 

Pregnancy and 
maternity 

No No No Described in Section 4 
 

Sexual Orientation No No No Described in Section 4 
 

Sex/gender No No No  Described in Section 4 
 

Please list any opportunities in the proposal for advancing equality of opportunity for any of the 
protected characteristics. 

 

These are described in section 4. 

                                                 
1
 Only the requirement to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination in employment should 

be considered. 

Page 34



 

 

 N/A 

h) Please list any opportunities in the proposal for 

fostering good relations for any of the protected 

characteristics. 

N/A 

i) Is the proposal a strategy that lays out priorities in 

relation to activity and resources and likely to have a 

negative socio-economic impact on residents? 

No 

j) Do you anticipate any Safeguarding risks as a result of 

the proposal? 

No 

k) Do you anticipate any potential Human Rights 

breaches as a result of the proposal? 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 35



 

6 
 

3. The policy, procedure, function, service activity or financial 

decision 

 
a) Date full assessment started: 30/10/2014 

b) Title of new or changed policy, procedure, function, service activity or financial decision 

being assessed?   

 

Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS) 2015-16 

People on low incomes who cannot pay their Council Tax bill can receive CTS to help them.  
 
Although people claim the rebate from local Councils who administer the scheme, the money 
comes from the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).  As part of the Spending Review 
2010, the Government announced that expenditure allocated to the localised scheme would be 
reduced by 10% and any increase in expenditure above what is forecast by The Department 
for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) must be funded locally by the Council. In 
2013/14 the council received approximately £2.9 million less to give out in support to 
claimants.  This meant the council had to make savings or increase income to fund the 
shortfall. The Government also stipulated that people of pension credit age must be protected, 
which meant that the CTS reduction was directed exclusively at working age claimants and 
would have meant a reduction of  around 18%-20% if the cuts were shared in equal 
proportions across all working age claimants.  Originally, the Council chose to make up for this 
shortfall by introducing a standard reduction to all Council Tax Support recipients of 8.5%, by 
taking up the Government’s offer of a temporary transitional grant and reducing the level of 
discounts that those with empty properties could apply for.  The Government has subsequently 
withdrawn any transitional grant but the Council has decided to maintain the original level of 
support it provides to its CTS residents and is funding this additional support wholly from its 
own funds.  As a result of the Council’s additional support the standard reduction to all Council 
Tax Support recipients remains capped at 8.5%.  Furthermore the Council’s CTS scheme also 
offers a cash back incentive of £15 to those who pay their bill in full which effectively reduces 
the 8.5% reduction for this category of CTS recipients. 

 

c) What is the profile of the current service users and residents impacted by the change?  (No 

word limit)  

 
It affects everyone in Islington who has to pay Council Tax which broadly speaking means that 
it affects all residents.  The number fluctuates but there are about 100,000 households with a 
liability for Council Tax. 

 

d) What is the profile of the workforce impacted by the change?  (No word limit)  

 

The workforce is not impacted.  The administration of CTS and its predecessor, Council Tax 
Benefit (CTB), are identical and nothing has changed for the workforce with regard to this or a 
decision about retaining the 8.5% reduction.. 

Page 36



 

7 
 

e) How will the proposed change impact this profile?  (No word limit)  

 

A decision to continue with an 8.5% reduction for working-age CTS recipients does not affect 
the profile of service users, residents or the workforce. 

 

  

Page 37



 

8 
 

4. Equality impacts and mitigations 
 

Since the Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS) relates to the distribution of money based on 
criteria relating to income, it is predominantly data relevant to these issues that has been 
analysed in order to assess the impact of the CTS proposals on different groups.   
 
As the funding for the scheme has been cut by 10%, the scheme would tend to disadvantage at 
least some residents with protected characteristics and/or those living in poverty, unless money 
was found from other parts of the council budget to make up the shortfall.  The Government has 
also stipulated that people of pension credit age must be protected, which means that the 
benefit paid to other CTS claimants would need to be reduced by an estimated 18%-20% if cuts 
were shared in equal proportions across all remaining recipients.   
 
However, in order to keep the extent of the financial burden on our working-age CTS claimants 
low the Council did not make an 18%-20% reduction but will continue to limit the reduction to 
8.5% in 2015/16 at a cost of approximately £0.5m within the Council’s 2015/16 budget. 
 
Given the scale of local government budget cuts over the past few years, it is unlikely that 
additional funding can be found from other sources which would not have a detrimental impact 
in other ways, potentially on groups with protected characteristics. The council has made the 
decision to keep within the budget set by central government, and while other choices are 
available, this appears to be a reasonable decision in the context of the council’s actual and 
forecast financial position. 
   
The council tax system holds very little data on most of the protected characteristics including 
gender, disability and race.  It has therefore been necessary to look at different local and 
national sources of data from different years in order to build a picture that can be used for this 
impact assessment.   
 
The 2011 census shows that there are 206,100 residents in Islington and 96,100 households.  
This is 27,000 more than the 2001 census upon which much of the data in this assessment is 
based. Notwithstanding its shortcomings, the data is sufficient to get an idea of potential 
impacts arising from CTS. 
 
Our CTS scheme incorporates full protection for older people and mitigation for disabled people 
and large families.  Applying the percentage reduction to the end of the benefit award (bottom 
slicing) rather than taking this from the liability (top slicing) helps people on partial benefit and 
there is a message from the consultation that those on partial benefit are more concerned about 
the impact of the CTS. To illustrate this in the case where the reduction is 8.5%; 
 
1)  for someone who was in receipt of £20 full CTB, whether the reduction in benefit was top 
sliced or bottom sliced the reduction is £1.70  (8.5%) leaving CTS of £18.30 for those previously 
receiving “full” benefit in this example, 
 
2)  however in the case of someone who was previously on partial CTB because they had 
additional income from working, to reduce their benefit by top slicing would (if the starting point 
was £20) leave their CTS as £8.30 (£20 less £1.70 (8.5%) less £10 Excess Income = £8.30).  
But if their partial benefit was reduced by bottom slicing instead this would leave their CTS as 
£9.15 (£20 less £10 Excess Income = £10. Taking 8.5% of this leaves £9.15).   
Therefore choosing to bottom slice makes it better for those on partial benefit which supports 
the consultation findings. 

Page 38



 

9 
 

 
There is also mitigation for those who might be deemed to be better off by allowing savings of 
up to £16,000 before someone is disqualified from receiving CTS (this is known as the “capital 
limit”) and giving an additional discount of up to £100 to all pensioners over the age of 65 
whether or not they currently qualify for CTB.  Although the net effect of providing support to 
those deemed to be better off is that less money is available for others that may be in greater 
need, there are positive aspects to Islington’s proposal.  People who are not particularly well off 
but have accumulated savings will not be penalised and even if savings were limited to £8,000 
because less than 200 claimants out of over 20,000 existing claimants have capital over this 
limit, the money that would have been available to others is relatively small.  In relation to 
pensioners over 65, Islington’s minimum CTS of £100 means that there will be no marginal 
cases of older pensioners who are not quite poor enough to receive the benefit but who are still 
economically fragile. This age group is likely to have less access to the labour market.    
 
Compared to council tax payers who are not in receipt of CTS, there is a more favourable 
recovery regime for CTS council tax payers of fortnightly instalments and even if the fortnightly 
instalments are missed there is another opportunity for CTS council tax payers to avoid having 
to be summonsed.  And even if a CTS council tax payer is summonsed, we will not use bailiffs 
to recover the money and we will remit court costs if they agree to and keep up with a new 
schedule of payments [which the Council Tax service call Special Arrangements]. 
 

Cash back incentive. 
 

Islington’s CTS scheme also incentivises working age CTS council tax payers who keep up with 
their instalments by awarding an extra £15 CTS to those who have paid what they owe by the 
date of their last instalment. 
 
Catering for exceptional hardship 
 
Additional support is available to the most vulnerable residents by way of a council tax welfare 
fund of £125,000 within the Council’s Resident Support Scheme (RSS) to support cases of 
exceptional hardship resulting from additional council tax charges. This will be available on a 
time-limited basis to residents who apply and meet the hardship criteria. Money has been 
generated for this fund by removing the 10% discount on second homes in Islington and 
charging more council tax on empty homes.  
In the first 7 months of 2014/15 over 34,000 claimants qualified for council tax support and there 
have been 12 applications for additional support, 6 of which worth £390 were awarded and 3 
had not been decided at time of writing.  So for now it does not appear from the volume of 
requests that our CTS claimants have been impacted to the extent that they need additional 
support from us. 
 

 
Further analysis by protected characteristic 

 

Summary 
 
The CTS scheme has been in operation for the last 18 months and there is no evidence that 
any particular group is particularly impacted.   
 
There have been 2 appeals and only 4 complaints about CTS so far.  Islington Debt Coalition 
members have not raised CTS as an issue in the welfare reform round table discussion which 
are a standing item for raising issues.  Our welfare reform response team (iWork) and our IMAX 

Page 39



 

10 
 

teams have not reported issues with CTS but we will use these teams to continue to review the 
impact.  
 
By 30th September 2012 we had collected 50.1% of council tax monies owed on the way to the 
best ever result for council tax collection by the end of 2012/13.  By the September 2013 of the 
first year of CTS we had collected 50.0% and as of 31st September this year we had collected 
49.5% of council tax monies owed, so overall it appears that our council tax collection 
performance continues to be strong but we continue to monitor for any downward pressure.  
There is evidence that working age CTS claimants are less likely to pay than any other type of 
council tax charge payer. This should be expected as this group are defined by a low income 
and the majority are unused to paying anything towards Council Tax.  
 

 

Age 

Key facts 

 

Older people 

• 41% of over 65’s in Islington are income deprived and 53% are in fuel poverty 

• Pension poverty affects women more than men  

• The older the pensioner the greater the likelihood to be living in a low income household. 

• Pensioners living in a household headed by someone from a BME community2 were more 

likely to be at the lower end of the income distribution curve.  

• Disabled pensioners in households not claiming appropriate disability benefits were much 

more likely to be in a low income household. 

• There were 1,040 Job Seekers Allowance recipients aged 50 to 64 in June 2012 in Islington 

• There were 3,180 Incapacity Benefit recipients aged 50 – 59 in the borough 

• There are approximately 22,750 people aged 51 to 65 in Islington–evidence indicates that 

people in this age group are least likely to find another job if they become workless. Islington, 

alongside Hackney, Tower Hamlets and Newham have the highest proportion of pensioners 

receiving the Guarantee element of Pension Credit 

 

Younger people 

• There are approximately known 800 carers under the age of 19 in Islington. 

• There were 1,575 residents aged 18 to 24 and 4,180 aged 25 to 49 claiming Job Seekers 

Allowance in June 2012. 

• There were 5,100 residents aged 25 to 49 claiming Incapacity benefit; 

                                                 
2
 In this context BME refers to the non-White population. Link: 

http://research.dwp.gov.uk/asd/hbai/hbai2010/pdf_files/full_hbai11.pdf 

Page 40

http://research.dwp.gov.uk/asd/hbai/hbai2010/pdf_files/full_hbai11.pdf


 

11 
 

 
 

Impact assessment 
 
Older people of pension credit age are protected under the scheme, and those over 65 will also 
continue to receive the £100 rebate. The proposals therefore do not lead to any financial impact 
on older people who currently receive the benefit or are eligible. From the information available, 
it is not possible to assess whether the scheme is accessible to older people (who may have a 
range of access needs) or their carers.  Given needs are met once identified, it would be 
important to make very clear through a range of channels that information etc is available in 
other formats, and that staff and voluntary sector and community organisations can also provide 
support. 
 
When it comes to age, much of national policy on this and related welfare reforms protects 
pensioners while working age benefit recipients experience cuts. The council proposals 
reinforce this distinction by retaining the £100 older person’s discount.   Although it could be 
argued that this leads to disproportionately worse impacts on those of working age, national and 
local data on the number of older people living in poverty and not necessarily claiming benefits 
means that the council’s position is reasonable from an equality perspective.  Furthermore, 
those in the over 65 category are less likely to access, or have access to, the labour market to 
supplement their income than those of working age. People of working age including young 
people are only eligible for CTS where they have an additional need, for example because of a 
disability or they are on a low income. The cumulative impact of welfare reforms on this group is 
significant and eligible younger residents may not be aware of what they are entitled to. 
Communication methods more suited to younger people such as text messaging, social media 
etc, may be useful in raising awareness. 
 
In respect of this characteristic no significant issues have emerged during the first 18 months 
operation of the CTS scheme. 
 
 
Mitigation 

GLA Population projections 2008 Round Low, Ward, GLA 2010

15,000 12,500 10,000 7,500 5,000 2,500 0 2,500 5,000 7,500 10,000 12,500 15,000

0 to 5

6 to 10

11 to 15

16 to 20

21 to 25

26 to 30

31 to 35

36 to 40

41 to 45

46 to 50

51 to 55

56 to 60

61 to 65

66 to 70

71 to 75

76 to 80

81 to 85

86+

Ag
e (

ye
ar

s)

Population count

Source:  Greater London Authority (http://data.london.gov.uk/)

These data are the sole copyright of the  © Greater London Authority, 2009. This 

must be clearly stated when the data is reproduced such as in publications or 

presentations.  

Males Female

Page 41



 

12 
 

 
Develop plans to ensure that information, support and advice is accessible and that the option 
to claim and ways to do so are well signposted by services and organisations in contact with 
potentially eligible residents and through proven communication channels. 
 

 

Disability 

Key facts: 

• There are 26,327 households with one or more person with a limiting long term illness 

• 12,540 claim out of work sickness benefits (incapacity benefit, severe disablement allowance 
and employment and support allowance) 

• There were 9,500 claiming incapacity benefit as at August 2011.  5,080 claiming for at least 2 
years and 3,930 for at least 5 years. 

• There are 7,350 working age Islington residents claiming Disability Living Allowance (a non-
means tested benefit available to employed or out-of-work disabled people) - 6,270 have 
been claiming for at least two years and 4,860 for at least 5 years. 

• There are 2,240 people claiming Carer’s Allowance (CA), of which 2,080 are of working age 

• The employment rate amongst disabled people is 48.2% 

• Nationally 50% earn less than half the mean earnings after adjusting for extra costs 

• Twice as likely to live in poverty but less likely to be in low income if in a workless household  

• Disabled pensioners in households not claiming appropriate disability benefits were much 
more likely to be in a low income household. 

The consultation responses provide indications that disabled people are concerned about being 
able to cope financially but the numbers of respondents, where this kind of data appears, are 
low. A relatively small number of disabled and non-disabled respondents volunteered the view 
that disabled people should pay less council tax, with a greater proportion of working age as 
opposed to pension age respondents expressing this view. 
 
In respect of this characteristic no significant issues have emerged during the first 18 months 
operation of the CTS scheme. 
 
 
Impact assessment 
 
Disabled people are disproportionately likely to be poor, out of work and on benefits.   They are 
disproportionately affected by welfare reform overall.  It is estimated that 28% of IB claimants 
will or have already migrated to ESA Support Group and be £17 a week better off.  However, 
33% will be on ESA Work Related Activity Group and be £4 a week worse off and 18% will 
migrate to JSA and be £40 a week worse off.   
 
Although the CTS scheme provides higher amounts for disabled people they will still get 8.5% 
less than they do now which in conjunction with the other welfare reform cuts could amplify the 
adverse impact.  The higher costs of care, transport and general living combined with the labour 
market disadvantage faced by disabled people could make the reductions stemming from the 
CTS scheme difficult for them to cope with. However, while members of this group are often 
economically disadvantaged, the rationale of a universal rather than means tested approach 
was challenged at the disabled group workshop. Some disabled people may not need the extra 

Page 42



 

13 
 

financial support and the argument made was that looking at groups rather than more specific 
individual or household circumstances is too simplistic.  
 
In the event, with respect to this characteristic no significant issues have emerged during the 
first 18 months operation of the CTS scheme. 
 
 
Mitigation options 
 
The Council has limited the reduction in benefit for disabled people from 18% to 8.5%.  
Continuing this for 2015/16 will continue to give people greater opportunity to adapt their 
financial circumstances. 
Supporting those with long term health conditions into employment is the best route out of 
poverty and is also recognised to be of benefit, particularly to people with mental health 
problems.  We willextend the holistic work assessment tool being piloted by the Parental 
Employment Partnership to sick and disabled claimants whose overall benefits are reduced and 
incorporate ESA claimants in the work of our IWork Team as part of the Universal Services 
Delivered Locally Trial .   

 
 

Race 

Key facts: 

• Employment 

– Non-white employment rate in Islington is 51.4% 

– Nationally, the rate is 59% for non-White compared to 72% for White people 

– Nationally 10% Indian and 15% White British men over 25 are not working compared with 
30% to 40% for Bangladeshi, Pakistani, Black Caribbean and Black African.  The high 
number of students explains much of the higher proportion for Black African. Not wanting 
to work explains a high proportion of Bangladeshi and Pakistani. 

• The ethnic profile of people starting to claim JSA in Feb 2010 showed that the proportion 
that were Black/Black British was 6 percentage points higher than their proportion in the 
2001 census, while the proportion that were White was 22 percentage points below their 
proportion in the 2001 census. 

• National data on earnings shows that those from Bangladeshi and Pakistani backgrounds 
are almost twice as likely to earn less than £7 per hour than those from Black African, Black 
Caribbean and White British backgrounds. 

– 48% Bangladeshi, 42% Pakistani 

– 27% Black African, 23% Black Caribbean 

– 25% White British 

• Households Below Average Income (HBAI) survey shows that children are much more likely 
to live in poverty if they are in a family headed by a BME parent, especially someone of 
Pakistani, Bangladeshi or Black non-Caribbean origin. 

 

The following table shows the ethnic distribution of families in Islington, differentiated between those 

who receive Council Tax Benefit and those who do not.  

Page 43



 

14 
 

 Yes - on 

CTB 

Not on 

CTB 

Grand 

Total 

Yes - on 

CTB 

Not on 

CTB 

All 

1 White British 2252 4950 7202 29% 38% 35% 

2 Other White 597 1286 1883 8% 10% 9% 

3 Turkish / Turkish Cypriot 503 242 745 6% 2% 4% 

4 Kurdish 57 21 78 1% 0% 0% 

5 Bangladeshi 355 333 688 5% 3% 3% 

6 Asian 131 218 349 2% 2% 2% 

7 Black Caribbean  328 483 811 4% 4% 4% 

8 Black Somali 324 187 511 4% 1% 2% 

9 Black African 480 649 1129 6% 5% 5% 

10 Black Other 345 424 769 4% 3% 4% 

11 Chinese 53 92 145 1% 1% 1% 

12 Mixed 882 1469 2351 11% 11% 11% 

13 Other 235 386 621 3% 3% 3% 

14 Not Obtained / Refused 78 183 261 1% 1% 1% 

15 Unknown* 1060 1564 2624 14% 12% 13% 

missing 155 416 571 2% 3% 3% 

Grand Total 7835 12903 20738 100% 100% 100% 

 

Reviewing CTB take-up within this cohort, the biggest discrepancy is among ‘white British’ 
residents who are significantly under-represented, and ‘other white’ who are slightly under-
represented. Bangladeshi, Black Somali, Turkish/ Turkish Cypriot and to a slightly lesser 
extent Black African are all over-represented. These figures are in line with what might be 
expected given the employment data briefly stated earlier, which indicate relative levels of 
poverty in different communities. 
 

• Refugees & Asylum Seekers 

– Data from 2002 indicates a 29% employment rate nationally among refugee and asylum 
seekers, which is much lower than average for BME people. (Bloch 2002) 

– From a small Islington sample, the data suggests those who work are in low paid, low-
skilled jobs 

• Gypsies & Travellers 

There are estimated to be 55 gypsy and traveller families in Islington, mostly living in 
houses. Although this community is small, its challenges are acute, with significantly 
disproportionate outcomes compared to any other group. For example, gypsies and 
travellers have the worst health outcomes of any racial or ethnic community and are twenty 
times more likely to experience the death of a child.  

 
The consultation responses did not point to any significant issues emerging based on ethnic 
background and none have emerged during the first 18 months operation of the CTS scheme. 

 
Impact assessment 
 
Welfare reforms, the economic situation and historic inequalities in employment together are 
likely to result in lower incomes for Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) residents, who will 
therefore be disproportionately affected by the reduction in CTS. Known barriers such as limited 
English and lack of familiarity with the system need to be mitigated by improving accessibility, 
especially for the most disadvantaged groups. 
 

Page 44



 

15 
 

Mitigation options 
 
Working through partners as well us using our own resources we will ensure access to CTS, as 
well as the Resident Support Scheme (RSS) for those in greatest need, is improved, so that all 
eligible residents receive the benefit. 
 
 

Religion/Belief 

Key facts:  

• Muslims experience much higher rates of unemployment (15.4%) and economic inactivity 
(51.4%) compared with the average for all groups (6.5% and 32.4%) 

• National research also suggests a “Muslim penalty” in employment especially for women 

 
Impact assessment 
From available data there appear to be no significant negative impacts that can be distinguished 
from ethnicity. Residents are not adversely impacted by the scheme by virtue of their religion/ 
belief (or absence thereof). 
 
Mitigation options 
None 
 

Gender and relationships 

This section covers gender, marriage, civil partnerships and gender re-assignments. 
Key facts: 

• Employment rate: 71.7% men, 63.8% women 

• The majority of lone parents of children living in poverty are women 

• Incapacity benefit: 5,320 men (57%), 4,030 women (43%) 

• Over 75% Bangladeshi & Pakistani women not in paid work  

• Nationally, the number of women not working is decreasing while the number of men not 

working is increasing, however the difference between the sexes of those aged 18 to 24 

is low. 

Last year’s consultation responses did not point to any significant issues emerging based on 
gender and none have emerged during the first 6 months operation of the CTS scheme. 

 
Impact assessment 
There appear to be no significant negative impacts for most people in this group due to any of 
these protected characteristics. The arrival of a new child increases household expenditure but 
this fact is already acknowledged in existing regulations which retain family premiums and 
disregard child benefit as income. 
 
Mitigation options 
 
None 
 

Page 45



 

16 
 

Pregnancy, maternity and family life 

Key facts: 

• There are 20,387 households with dependent children in Islington, of which 6,859 (34%) 
headed by a lone parent 

– 8,702 with children aged 0 to 4 

– 7,204 no adult working (35%) 

• 46% living in poverty – 2nd highest nationally 

• Most significant factors are lone parent, BME parents, disability, 3 or more children 

• Of all the children in Islington HB/CTB data shows that: 

– 39% (14,867) are in families on out of work benefits 

– 15.2% (5,746) are in working families on incomes low enough to qualify for HB/CTB 

– 45.8% (17,348) are in families sufficiently well off enough not to need to claim HB/CTB 

 

 

 

 

Table below showing Information from Children Services showing the number of 
households in Islington with dependent children: 

 

Households Below Average Income (HBAI) survey shows that children are much more likely to 
live in poverty if they are in a family headed by a BME parent, especially someone of Pakistani, 
Bangladeshi or Black non-Caribbean origin; living in overcrowded accommodation; with three or 
more children; headed by a lone parent or with a disabled family member. 
 
There are 1,400 households with 2,420 child dependents (aged up to 18) claiming IB or Severe 
Disablement Allowance. 
 
It is estimated that the vast majority of Islington households with children, whose housing will 
become unaffordable due to LHA changes and the overall Benefit Cap will be workless 
households. 

lone parents  all children   lone parents households  

Row Labels Yes - 

on 

CTB 

Not on 

CTB 

Grand 

Total 

  Yes - 

on 

CTB 

Not 

on 

CTB 

Grand 

Total 

lone parent 6636 5564 12200  lone parent 3489 3114 6603 

two parents 9903 17669 27572  two parents 4332 9722 14054 

unknown 16 81 97  unknown 14 67 81 

Grand Total 16555 23314 39869  Grand Total 7835 12903 20738 

         

low income all children   low income  households  

Row Labels Yes - 

on 

CTB 

Not on 

CTB 

Grand 

Total 

 Row Labels Yes - 

on 

CTB 

Not 

on 

CTB 

Grand 

Total 

low income 16103 8025 24128  low income 7626 3623 11249 

not low income 452 15289 15741  not low income 209 9280 9489 

Grand Total 16555 23314 39869  Grand Total 7835 12903 20738 

Page 46



 

17 
 

 
Over 55% (11,306) of all households with children are on housing and/or council tax benefit, but 
a far higher proportion of these are headed by lone parents than the population as a whole:  
59% (4,036) of lone parent households on HB/CTB compared with 37% (5,045) of the couple 
households 
 

The consultation responses segmented by those with and without children indicate concerns 
about family finances was high for both groups, but that those with four or more children were 
particularly concerned, and those with children were more likely to raise the issue, unprompted, 
of struggling with money because they have children to care for.  However, it should be noted 
that the actual number of responses received voicing these concerns was very low and in 
respect of this characteristic no significant issues have emerged during the first 18 months 
operation of the CTS scheme. 
 
 
Impact assessment 
 
The council has in place a number of measures to support families with children – a key issue in 
looking at poverty in the borough as the data above indicate. By retaining all family premiums 
and applicable amounts, the council recognises that families require a higher level of income to 
support their household. 
 
It has been decided not to cap benefit at the higher bands and their benefit will be based on the 
actual charge for the property.  This means that there will be no adverse impact for families in 
larger properties because they are in a higher band. They will be no worse off because they are 
in a higher banded property.  If benefit was capped at band D or E benefit could only be paid up 
to this band and the customer would have to pay the full amount above that, which might mean 
they incur hundreds of pounds of new costs. 
 
Mitigation options 
 
As with other affected groups, it is important that take up is encouraged and that families in 
greatest need are provided with additional support through the RSS. 
 

Sexual Orientation 

Key facts: 

• 84% LGBT economically active compared to the 75% population 

• Economic activity is more likely to continue beyond age 55 

• 73%  female and 79% men on incomes above the average for London 

• 3% live in households with children under 18 

• 10% live in social housing compared to 49% of the overall Islington population 

• 37% experience mental health problems at some point 

Source:  Revealing LGBT Islington study 2005 
 
Impact assessment 
 
The data indicates that LGBT people tend to be economically better off than other groups, as 
they are more likely to be in work, work for longer and be on higher salaries. This group may be 

Page 47



 

18 
 

more at risk of specific conditions, such as mental health problems or being HIV+, than the 
general population, but where this is the case then their situation is addressed in the disability 
section. There are no negative impacts associated with sexual orientation triggered by this 
scheme. 
 
Mitigation options 
None. 
 
 

b) Mitigation for people with protected characteristics 
 
 

 Continuing to hold the cap on benefit at 8.5% despite no longer having a transitional 

grant from government to cover this and many local authorities moving away from this 

level of cap and passing the full extent of the government council tax benefit funding 

reduction to residents. This will ensure that those with protected characteristics are not 

impacted by the full possible extent of the government funding reduction. 

 The regulations of the current scheme have been retained, and these already make extra 

provision for disabled people and families by: 

o retaining all disability premiums so that the level of allowable income before tapers 

are introduced is higher than for the average working age person; 

o continuing to disregard as income certain disability benefits such as Disability 

Living Allowance (DLA)  and War Disablement Allowance; 

o ensuring that no non-dependent deductions apply if a person is in receipt of DLA 

(care component) therefore allowing him/her to qualify for a disability premium;      

o retaining all family premiums and applicable amounts in recognition of the fact that 

families need a higher level of income to support their household; 

o continuing to disregard Child Benefit as income in the calculation of benefit 

entitlement – this means that there is an allowance for each child and a premium 

for disabled children. 

Further to the original regulations we agreed to afford recipients of Personal Independence 

Payments (PIP) the same favourable premiums and allowances in the CTS scheme as 

we did DLA recipients, from the start date of the new benefit. 

 

 The regulations also encourage moving into employment by: 

o offering a 4 week guaranteed payment of existing benefit level to those attaining 

work 

  The re-use of the existing regulations also: 

o supports and promotes an incentive for saving by retaining the savings limit of 

£16,000 that exists within the current scheme 

o does not cap the reduction/support for higher property bands to ensure that there 

is no adverse impact on families in higher banded properties  

Page 48



 

19 
 

 
In addition, current practice in Islington to support people with accessibility requirements will be 
retained. Therefore documents are made available in different formats such as large print, audio 
and Braille and once known, the requested format will be provided as a matter of course.  
Translation services and interpreting services are also available when requested. 
 
 

 

5. Socio-economic, Safeguarding and Human Rights impacts 
 

a) Socio-economic impacts 

Please describe the potential negative impacts of the proposal on residents, and any action that 

can be taken in response. Please refer to section 3.6 of the guidance for more information. 

 

Socio-economic disadvantage is not a protected characteristic but is a consideration 
included in the resident impact assessment given the significant income inequality within 
the borough. The previous Council Tax Benefit scheme was a means tested benefit 
available to households on a low income. Therefore all recipients would be considered to 
be at a socio-economic disadvantage, particularly lone parents (more likely to be women), 
part time workers (more likely to be women) and large households (more likely to be from 
BME backgrounds).Currently there is little or no Council Tax Benefit data breakdown on 
the following protected characteristics: gender reassignment/identity, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, religion/belief or sexual orientation.  During the lead 
up to the new CTS scheme, extensive consultation and communications were undertaken.  
Raising the awareness of residents of the CTS scheme. We have made available Council 
Tax payment options that include 2 weekly instalments over 12 months and direct debits 
have been widely publicised. The service will work with debt counselling and financial 
inclusion provisions within the borough.  Islington is increasing the employment and skills 
provision in the borough through an Employment unit called iWork and is leading on a trial 
employment support initiative called “Universal Support Delivered Locally” to work with 
residents affected to increase their skills and the potential for them to get into employment. 
Actions to minimise causing further hardship to people already on low incomes have been 
identified in earlier sections. 

b) Safeguarding risks 

Please describe any safeguarding risks for children or vulnerable adults? Please refer to 

section 3.7 of the guidance for more information. 

 

No safeguarding issues were identified 

 

Page 49



 

20 
 

c) Human Rights breaches 

Please describe any potential human rights breaches that may occur as a result of the proposal. 

Particular attention should be paid to Article 3 (inhuman treatment) and Article 8 (right to privacy). 

Please refer to section 3.8 of the guidance for more information. 

 

No human rights issues were identified 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

6. Summary: core findings of the RIA 
 

a) Who will the proposal mainly impact?  Please provide bullet points summarising the key 

impacts below: 

 Since the Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS) relates to the distribution of money 

based on criteria relating to low income then all residents on low income who are liable 

for council tax are affected by this proposal. 

 Since the Council is using its own resources to limit the extent of the reduction in 

benefit to 8.5% then all residents are impacted by this proposal as they all have a 

stake in how the Council uses its limited resources. 

b) What are the equality impacts of the proposal?  Please provide bullet points below. 

 The impact on all working age CTS claimants and potential claimants is the same in 

that they now have to contribute 8.5% more towards their Council Tax bill than they 

would have done up to March 2013. 

 The impact on pension age CTS claimants is probably negligible as they have been 

protected from 8.5% reduction. 

 No other impacts specific to people with protected characteristics have emerged during 

the first 18 months’ operation of the CTS scheme.  

c) What safeguarding risks have been identified?  Please provide bullet points below. 

 None 

d) What are the potential Human Rights breaches?  Please provide bullet points below. 

 None 

Page 50



 

21 
 

e) Monitoring: what issues should be monitored, i.e. during and after implementation of this 

policy/change? 

Issue to be monitored Responsible person or 
team  

The nature of any appeals against the operation of the CTS 
scheme 

CRQTC (Fin Ops) 

The nature of any complaints about the operation the CTS 
scheme 

CRQTC (Fin Ops) 

The difference in the council tax collection rates between CTS 
working age and all other council tax charge payers.  

CRQTC (Fin Ops) 

The volume of requests made to the RSS for help to pay council 
tax 

Processing (Fin Ops) 

 

List any additional items to be monitored in the text box below: 

Click here to enter text. 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Staff member completing this form:  Head of Service or higher: 

Signed: Andrew Spigarolo 

 

Signed: 

______________

 

Date: 31/10/2014  Date: 31/10/2014 

 

Please sign and date below to confirm that you have completed the Resident Impact 
Assessment in accordance with the guidance and using relevant available information.  (A 
signature must also be obtained from a Service Head or higher.  If this is a Corporate Resident 
Impact Assessment it must be signed by a Corporate Director). 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



                      Governance and Human Resources 
                               Town Hall, Upper Street  
                                                                                                                                London N1 2UD 

 
Report of: Assistant Chief Executive, Governance and Human Resources 
 

Meeting of  
 

Date 
 

Ward(s) 

Council 
 

4 December 2014 N/A 

 

Delete as 
appropriate 

 Non-exempt 

 
 
 
  
 
 
Subject: QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT 
 

1. Synopsis 

1.1 In accordance with the Constitution, officers and Corporate Directors may take decisions on behalf 
of the Executive, subject to certain provisions.  Paragraph 68 of the Constitution requires that, 
where a matter has been determined as urgent or that call-in did not apply, it should be reported to 
the next meeting of the Executive and to Council on a quarterly basis.  
 

1.2 To comply with this requirement, Council are advised that the following decision was made during 
the last quarter using urgency procedures: 
 
ST ANNE'S CARE HOME, 60 DURHAM ROAD - CONTRACT AWARD FOR THE PROVISION OF 
CARE HOME SERVICES 
 
Decision made on 5 November 2014 by the Corporate Director Housing and Adult Social Services 
to award the contract to provide care services to Blackberry Hill Limited. 

2. Recommendation 

2.1 To note the decisions taken during the previous quarter.  

 
 

3. Background 
  
3.1 In accordance with paragraph 8.8 of Part 3 of the Constitution, the Chief Executive, Corporate 

Directors, the Director of Public Health and Assistant Chief Executives are authorised to take 
decisions where the matter is urgent.  If the decision concerns an executive function, the exercise of 

Page 53

Agenda Item 11



authority under that provision must be reported to the next available meeting of the Executive and to 
Council on a quarterly basis. 

 
 

4. Implications 
 
4.1 Financial Implications  

These are contained in the individual reports. 
       

4.2 Legal Implications 
 These are contained in the individual reports. 
 

4.3 Equalities Impact Assessment 
These are contained in the individual reports. 

 
4.4 Environmental implications 

These are contained in the individual reports.  

 

5. Conclusion and reason for recommendation 

In accordance with the Constitution, urgent key decisions taken by a Director, on which  

call-in has been waived, must be reported to the next meeting of the Executive and to Council  

on a quarterly basis 

 
Background papers: 

None 

 
Signed by:  

 
 

 
 

 
 
10 November 2014 

 Assistant Chief Executive, Governance and 
Human Resources 

Date 

   
   
 
Report Author: Philippa Murphy 
Tel: (020) 7527 3184 
Email: Philippa.murphy@islington.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 54



 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING – 4 DECEMBER 2014 
 
 
 
NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
  
 
 
MOTION 1: TACKLING TAX-DODGING BUSINESSES, LOCALLY AND GLOBALLY 
  
Proposer:  Cllr Andy Hull                         
Seconder:  Cllr Marian Spall 
 
This Council notes: 
 

• The contribution that Islington businesses make in our community by providing 
employment opportunities for residents of the borough. 

• That 13p in every £1 of the Council's funding comes from retained business rates paid 
by organisations that occupy premises in the borough. 

• That supporting local businesses is a priority for this Council administration. 
 

This Council further notes: 
 

• That a minority of businesses, and sometimes even charities, use complex techniques 
to avoid paying the business rates they would otherwise owe. 

• That tax avoidance, whether local, national or international, damages the ability of 
government at all levels to serve society through providing essential public services 
such as education, transport and health. 

 
This Council therefore resolves to: 
 

• Continue to pursue organisations to pay their fair share of business rates through 
every available means. 

• Continue to support local businesses and community and voluntary sector 
organisations through business rates relief, where appropriate. 

• Support Action Aid’s 'Towns Against Tax Dodging' campaign. 
• Call on the Government to close tax loopholes and shut down tax havens wherever 

they exist, to ensure that every business pays its fair share of tax. 

Page 55

Agenda Item 12



MOTION 2: FIRE CUTS MAKE ISLINGTON LESS SAFE 
 
Proposer:   Cllr Paul Convery   
Seconder:  Cllr Alice Donovan 
 
This Council notes –  
 

- In January 2013, the Full Council Meeting unanimously supported an all-party motion 
condemning the Conservative Mayor of London’s budget cuts to London’s fire service 
and the planned closure of Clerkenwell fire station.  
 

- In June 2013, Islington Council submitted a detailed response to the draft Fifth London 
Safety Plan, which argued that having fewer fire engines that take longer to reach 
incidents cannot be justified. 
 

- That a majority of members on the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority 
(LFEPA) voted against the adoption of the Fifth London Safety Plan, but were legally 
directed to adopt the plan on the orders of the Mayor of London.  
 

- That Islington led a consortium of London Boroughs to mount a judicial review of the 
Mayor of London’s and LFEPA’s decisions in December 2013, but that this was 
unsuccessful. 

 
This Council further notes –  
 

- The latest data published by the LFEPA which shows that, in the 8 months following 
the fire station closures, response times for Islington have worsened across the 
borough and, for incidents requiring more than one appliance, response times have 
worsened in 15 out of 16 wards.  
 

- That although fire and emergency incidents have declined over the last decade, when 
incidents do occur, the distance required to reach those incidents does not diminish. 
The latest response times demonstrate that it now takes longer to reach incidents than 
before and that any delay in a fire engine reaching a serious incident puts lives at risk. 

 
This Council reiterates our belief that –  
 

- Islington remains a less safe borough following the closure of fire stations and 
reduction in fire engines (‘appliances’) serving Islington and adjoining Boroughs. 
 

- Clerkenwell Fire Station served a vital strategic role in central London, also in serving 
the south of our borough and Camden. 
 

- Kingsland Fire Station provided responsive and life-saving coverage to the east of our 
borough.  
 

This Council resolves to call on the Mayor of London and LFEPA to reconsider the reduction 
in fire engines and crews in the light of these worsening response times. 
 
 
 

Page 56



MOTION 3: MOTION PROPOSING THAT ISLINGTON JOINS OTHER LABOUR COUNCILS 
CALLING FOR TFL TO EXPAND, STRENGTHEN AND BRING FORWARD THE 
INTRODUCTION OF THE PROPOSED ULTRA LOW EMISSION ZONE 
 
Proposer:   Cllr Caroline Russell   
 
Council notes that the Labour-controlled London boroughs of Camden, Hackney, Lambeth 
and Southwark are calling for the Mayor of London to dramatically expand the proposed Ultra 
Low Emission Zone (ULEZ), strengthen it and introduce it earlier than 2020. 
 
According to those councils, the current ULEZ proposals “do not go far enough in creating 
cleaner air and will not result in London avoiding heavy fines” from breaching EU air quality 
limits. 
 
The four councils have called for TfL to: 

• Strongly consider widening the zone and increasing it, incrementally tightening 
standards. 

• Clearly ring-fence funds collected for air quality improvement and sustainable transport 
uses. 

• Lay out a progressive charging structure, including higher levies against more polluting 
motors, in order to gradually phase out diesel engines. 

• Introduce a scrappage scheme in tandem with the roll-out of the zone. 
• Include exemptions of the ULEZ when it would cause genuine business hardship. 
• Strengthen the existing Low Emission Zone (LEZ) so that it applies to all vehicles by 

2025. 
• Provide further ULEZ options if necessary. 

 
This Council resolves to – 
Support these calls for the ULEZ to be expanded, strengthened and introduced earlier than 
2020. 
 
 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

COUNCIL MEETING – 4 DECEMBER 2014 
 
 
 
REVISED NOTICES OF MOTION 
 
  
 
 
MOTION 1: TACKLING TAX-DODGING BUSINESSES, LOCALLY AND GLOBALLY 
  
Proposer:  Cllr Andy Hull                         
Seconder:  Cllr Marian Spall 
 
This Council notes: 
 

• The contribution that Islington businesses make in our community by providing 
employment opportunities for residents of the borough. 

• That 13p in every £1 of the Council's funding comes from retained business rates paid 
by organisations that occupy premises in the borough. 

• That supporting local businesses is a priority for this Council administration. 
 

This Council further notes: 
 

• That a minority of businesses, and sometimes even charities, use complex techniques 
to avoid paying the business rates they would otherwise owe. 

• That tax avoidance, whether local, national or international, damages the ability of 
government at all levels to serve society through providing essential public services 
such as education, transport and health. 

 
This Council therefore resolves to: 
 

• Continue to pursue organisations to pay their fair share of business rates through 
every available means. 

• Continue to support local businesses and community and voluntary sector 
organisations through business rates relief, where appropriate. 

• Support Action Aid’s 'Towns Against Tax Dodging' campaign. 
• Call on the Government to close tax loopholes and shut down tax havens wherever 

they exist, to ensure that every business pays its fair share of tax. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 13



MOTION 2: FIRE CUTS MAKE ISLINGTON LESS SAFE 
 
Proposer:   Cllr Paul Convery   
Seconder:  Cllr Alice Donovan 
 
This Council notes –  
 

- In January 2013, the Full Council Meeting unanimously supported an all-party motion 
condemning the Conservative Mayor of London’s budget cuts to London’s fire service 
and the planned closure of Clerkenwell fire station.  
 

- In June 2013, Islington Council submitted a detailed response to the draft Fifth London 
Safety Plan, which argued that having fewer fire engines that take longer to reach 
incidents cannot be justified. 
 

- That a majority of members on the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority 
(LFEPA) voted against the adoption of the Fifth London Safety Plan, but were legally 
directed to adopt the plan on the orders of the Mayor of London.  
 

- That Islington led a consortium of London Boroughs to mount a judicial review of the 
Mayor of London’s and LFEPA’s decisions in December 2013, but that this was 
unsuccessful. 

 
This Council further notes –  
 

- The latest data published by the LFEPA which shows that, in the 8 months following 
the fire station closures, response times for Islington have worsened across the 
borough and, for incidents requiring more than one appliance, response times have 
worsened in 15 out of 16 wards.  
 

- That although fire and emergency incidents have declined over the last decade, when 
incidents do occur, the distance required to reach those incidents does not diminish. 
The latest response times demonstrate that it now takes longer to reach incidents than 
before and that any delay in a fire engine reaching a serious incident puts lives at risk. 

 
This Council reiterates our belief that –  
 

- Islington remains a less safe borough following the closure of fire stations and 
reduction in fire engines (‘appliances’) serving Islington and adjoining Boroughs. 
 

- Clerkenwell Fire Station served a vital strategic role in central London, also in serving 
the south of our borough and Camden. 
 

- Kingsland Fire Station provided responsive and life-saving coverage to the east of our 
borough.  
 

This Council resolves to call on the Mayor of London and LFEPA to reconsider the reduction 
in fire engines and crews in the light of these worsening response times. 
 
 
 

Page 60



MOTION 3: MOTION PROPOSING THAT ISLINGTON JOINS OTHER LABOUR COUNCILS 
CALLING FOR TFL TO EXPAND, STRENGTHEN AND BRING FORWARD THE 
INTRODUCTION OF THE PROPOSED ULTRA LOW EMISSION ZONE 
 
Proposer:   Cllr Caroline Russell   
 
Council notes that the Labour-controlled London boroughs of Camden, Hackney, Lambeth 
and Southwark are calling for the Mayor of London to dramatically expand the proposed Ultra 
Low Emission Zone (ULEZ), strengthen it and introduce it earlier than 2020. 
 
According to those councils, the current ULEZ proposals “do not go far enough in creating 
cleaner air and will not result in London avoiding heavy fines” from breaching EU air quality 
limits. 
 
The four councils have called for TfL to: 

• Strongly consider widening the zone and increasing it, incrementally tightening 
standards. 

• Clearly ring-fence funds collected for air quality improvement and sustainable transport 
uses. 

• Lay out a progressive charging structure, including higher levies against more polluting 
motors, in order to gradually phase out diesel engines. 

• Introduce a scrappage scheme in tandem with the roll-out of the zone. 
• Include exemptions of the ULEZ when it would cause genuine business hardship. 
• Strengthen the existing Low Emission Zone (LEZ) so that it applies to all vehicles by 

2025. 
• Provide further ULEZ options if necessary. 

 
This Council resolves to – 
Support these calls for the ULEZ to be expanded, strengthened and introduced earlier than 
2020. 
 
 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO MOTION 3: MOTION PROPOSING THAT ISLINGTON 
JOINS OTHER LABOUR COUNCILS CALLING FOR TFL TO EXPAND, STRENGTHEN 
AND BRING FORWARD THE INTRODUCTION OF THE PROPOSED ULTRA LOW 
EMISSION ZONE 
 

- Proposer: Cllr Claudia Webbe 
 
This Council notes -  
 
- That Islington was the first borough to introduce and enforce 20mph speed limits on 
all roads managed by the council; helping to make roads safer and to improve air 
quality. 
 

- The calls by this administration for all buses operating from Holloway Bus Garage to 
be hybrid models by May 2016, to improve air quality in the local area and across the 
borough 
 

- The work the council has done to insulate 12,000 council properties with cavity wall 
insulation, saving each household £10 per year on energy bills and reducing heat 

Page 61



wastage. 
 

- That this administration supports the current ULEZ proposals which would apply to the 
same area of the borough covered by the existing Congestion Charging Zone. 
 

- It is estimated that the current ULEZ and the proposed extension to the ULEZ to 
include the whole of the borough would force 20,000 residents to spend thousands of 
pounds changing their vehicles, or face huge daily fees to continue using their current 
vehicles, 
 

- For those residents on low incomes, being forced to change their vehicle or paying 
huge daily fees would simply not be affordable. 
 

- That buses, coaches and HGVs provide the largest contribution to Nitrogen Oxide 
emissions in the borough, and create over 60% of the particulate matter emissions in 
the borough. 
 

- Council notes tThat the Labour-controlled London boroughs of Camden, Hackney, 
Lambeth and Southwark are calling for the Mayor of London to dramatically expand 
the proposed Ultra Low Emission Zone (ULEZ)., strengthen it and introduce it earlier 
than 2020. 
 
This Council further notes - 
 

- That the council has commissioned two reports; an Air Quality Apportionment Study to 
better understand what the sources of pollution are in our borough; and a report on the 
cost-benefit analysis of expanding the ULEZ to include the whole of Islington, which 
will report by the New Year. 
 

- That proposals made by other London Boroughs, but which have not been included in 
the ULEZ proposals by the Mayor of London, to ring-fence funds collected by the 
ULEZ to support air quality improvements and sustainable transport; introduce a 
scrappage scheme in conjunction with any future expansion of the ULEZ, and to 
include exemptions for businesses. 
   
 

 
According to those councils, the current ULEZ proposals “do not go far enough in creating 
cleaner air and will not result in London avoiding heavy fines” from breaching EU air quality 
limits. 
 
The four councils have called for TfL to: 

• Strongly consider widening the zone and increasing it, incrementally tightening 
standards. 

• Clearly ring-fence funds collected for air quality improvement and sustainable transport 
uses. 

• Lay out a progressive charging structure, including higher levies against more polluting 
motors, in order to gradually phase out diesel engines. 

• Introduce a scrappage scheme in tandem with the roll-out of the zone. 
• Include exemptions of the ULEZ when it would cause genuine business hardship. 
• Strengthen the existing Low Emission Zone (LEZ) so that it applies to all vehicles by 

2025. 
• Provide further ULEZ options if necessary. 

Page 62



 
This Council resolves to – 
 
Take an evidence based approach that considers the impact on local residents when 
analysing any proposals to expand Support these calls for the ULEZ.  to be expanded, 
strengthened and introduced earlier than 2020. 
 
 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 Revised report of the Chief Whip
	8 Questions from Members of the Public
	COUNCIL MEETING – 4 DECEMBER 2014

	9 Questions from Members of the Council
	COUNCIL MEETING – 4 DECEMBER 2014

	10 Council Tax Support Scheme 2015-2016
	CTS scheme 2015_2016 draft App A - AMH Final
	CTS scheme 2015_2016 RIA App B - AMH Final

	11 Quarterly Monitoring Report
	12 Notices of Motion
	13 Revised Notice of Motions

